
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 

YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

FEBRUARY 5, 2019 
 

Work Session – 5:00 p.m. 
Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 
MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 



   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
  SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE  TREASURER LARRY DOE 
TRUSTEES: STAN ELDRIDGE  HEATHER JARRELL ROE  MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS  

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 
 

                                 
 
 
 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2019 
      

 
5:00pm 

 
CIVIC CENTER 
BOARD ROOM 

7200  HURON RIVER DRIVE 
 
 

 
1. YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP ASSET MANAGEMENT  

PLAN FOR COUNTY DRAINS………………………………SCOTT MILLER, DEPUTY WATER 
RESOURCE COMMISSIONER 

 
2. WASHTENAW REGIONAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

…………………………………………………THEO EGGERMONT, WASHTENAW COUNTY 
WATER RESOURCE COMMISSION AND  
BOB DAVIS, SOCCRA 

 
3. AGENDA REVIEW .............................................................................. SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 
4. OTHER DISCUSSION   ............................................................................   BOARD MEMBERS 

 
 
 



 

   

 

 

Washtenaw County  

Water Resources Commissioner’s Office 

 

 

Ypsilanti Township 

Asset Management Plan 

For County Drainage Systems 
 

 

 

Version 1.0 

January 2019 



2 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Document Control Asset Management Plan for County Drainage Systems                                   

Washtenaw County Green Storm water Infrastructure AMP 

Rev No Date Revision Details Author Reviewer Approver 

1 Jan 2019 First draft of an asset management plan for 
Ypsilanti Township  

SAM   

      

      

      

      

      

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 | P a g e  

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
1. INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................................... 4 

Background .......................................................................................................................................... 4 
Goals and Objectives of Asset Ownership ........................................................................................... 7 

2. LEVELS OF SERVICE ............................................................................................................................... 7 
2.1 Expectations ................................................................................................................................ 7 
2.2 Strategic Goals ............................................................................................................................. 7 
2.3 Levels of Service .......................................................................................................................... 8 

3. LIFECYCLE MANAGEMENT PLAN .......................................................................................................... 9 
3.1 Background Data ......................................................................................................................... 9 
3.2 Budget ......................................................................................................................................... 9 
3.2 Regular Maintenance................................................................................................................... 9 
3.2 Proactive Maintenance .............................................................................................................. 10 
3.5 Renewal/Replacement Plan....................................................................................................... 10 
3.6 Creation/Acquisition/Upgrade Plan........................................................................................... 11 
3.7 Initial Inspection ........................................................................................................................ 11 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN ................................................................................................................. 12 
4.1 Critical Assets ............................................................................................................................. 12 
4.2 Risk Assessment ......................................................................................................................... 12 
4.3 Service and Risk Trade-Offs ....................................................................................................... 13 

5. PLAN IMPROVEMENT AND MONITORING ......................................................................................... 14 
5.2 Monitoring and Review Procedures .......................................................................................... 14 
5.2 Performance Measures ............................................................................................................. 14 

6. SUMMARY .......................................................................................................................................... 15 
6.1 Next Steps .................................................................................................................................. 15 

7. APPENDICES ....................................................................................................................................... 16 
A Projected 10-year Capital Renewal and Replacement Works Program.......................................... 16 
B Ypsilanti Township County Drain Map ............................................................................................ 17 
C Reactive Maintenance Summary .................................................................................................... 18 
D Mowing Program Summary ............................................................................................................ 19 
E Vactor/Cleaning Summary .............................................................................................................. 20 
F Renewal Summary ........................................................................................................................... 21 
G Overall AM Summary ...................................................................................................................... 22 
H Resolutions ..................................................................................................................................... 23 

 

 



4 | P a g e  

 

   

 

INTRODUCTION 

Background 

The Michigan Drain Code of 1956, as amended, currently caps the allowable maintenance spending on county drains to 
$5,000 per mile. This equates to less than $1.00 per linear foot of drain and severely limits our office’s ability to inspect, 
remove sediment or woody vegetation, clear obstructions or catch structures, repair breakages, and generally maintain 
the drainage infrastructure. As such, our field operations primarily consists of reactively responding to service requests and 
keeping the drains operational. We would appreciate the opportunity to methodically continue renewing drains to their 
original condition, as they will all continue to deteriorate without taking proactive measures. In other parts of the County, 
this type of approach has dramatically reduced service calls by eliminating sediment and debris in or near the drain, and 
allowing a drain to move into our low-cost mowing program. 

The storm water infrastructure in Ypsilanti Township consists of 91 legally established county drains, two state regulated 
dams, three regional storm water basins, and various other appurtenances. In all, there are approximately 132 miles of 
drainage conveyances with a replacement value estimated at slightly under 43 million dollars. This plan recommends 
overall annual spending of $500-750 thousand, which is between one and two percent of the replacement value. Details 
and reasons supporting this recommendation will be provided in following sections within the report. 

  



5 | P a g e  

 

 

 

The infrastructure assets covered by this asset management plan are shown in Table 1. These assets are used to provide 
stormwater conveyance, agricultural drainage and nonpoint source pollution control. 

Table 1:  Assets covered by this Plan 

Drain Year 
Est. 

Linear 
Feet 

type Chp 
20? 

Replacement Value 

Amberly Grove 1999 12121 enclosed  $545,458.93 
Aspen Ridge 2003 6115 enclosed  $275,152.59 
Beyer Relief 1929 104513 enclosed yes $6,270,776.72 
Brock Tile 1912 6936 combination  $228,743.60 
Budd 1928 5088 enclosed  $228,974.85 
Clubview Estates 1993 3433 enclosed  $154,464.01 
Creekside Village East 2015 8763 enclosed  $394,349.33 
Creekside Village South  11648 enclosed  $524,158.86 
Creekside Village West  8328 enclosed  $374,740.00 
Deauville Parish 1980 6545 enclosed  $294,507.53 
Derbyshire 1919 9727 combination  $343,566.62 
Eaton 1871 1796 open  $26,932.89 
Ford Lake Hghts 1980 3522 enclosed   $158,505.39 
Ford Lake Hghts #4 1991 1110 enclosed  $49,933.72 
Ford Lake Hghts #5 1991 1699 enclosed  $76,455.86 
Ford Lake Hghts Sub #2 1990 2587 enclosed  $116,412.34 
Ford Lake Hghts Sub #3 1990 1681 enclosed  $75,653.19 
Ford Lake Village #1 1992 4364 enclosed  $196,401.80 
Ford Lake Village #2 1994 7409 enclosed  $333,425.63 
Gault Farms Sub 1960 10645 enclosed  $479,036.78 
Gault Village 1974 2064 enclosed yes $92,897.26 
Georgetown 1996 3922 enclosed  $176,485.33 
Golf Estates 1999 1925 enclosed  $86,634.74 
Gorton  1907 9930 open  $148,945.77 
Green Fields 2000 14513 enclosed  $653,091.64 
Greene Farms 1997 52330 enclosed  $2,354,871.09 
Hamilton Tile  11071 enclosed yes $664,261.17 
Huron Cnter Com & Ind Park 0 1455 enclosed  $65,487.10 
Huron Cnter Com & Off Park 1988 1778 enclosed  $80,027.32 
Huron Commons Condo  1025 enclosed  $46,115.49 
Jerome Street 1955 2577 enclosed  $115,970.93 
Laflin 1909 5753 open  $86,294.36 
Lakewood Farms 1997 2060 enclosed  $92,689.08 
Miller 1963 2373 open   $35,599.01 
Nancy Park #3 1955 2498 enclosed   $112,410.97 
N Br of Big Swan Creek IC 2017 13067 open  $196,002.69 
North Ford Lake CONSOL 1975 5239 enclosed yes $284,116.32 
Oakland Estates Sub 1977 12161 enclosed  $547,266.67 
Owen Relief 1964 580 enclosed    $26,088.13 
Packard Br of Paint Creek 1970 20 enclosed  $910.55 
Partridge Creek 1996 45177 enclosed   $2,027,832.21 
Pineview Golf Course Est 1990 191 enclosed   $8,586.56 
Pineview Golf Course Est #2 1995 517 enclosed   $23,286.03 
Pineview Golf North 1999 164 enclosed  $7,378.37 



6 | P a g e  

 

 

Pittsfield-Clubview 1978 496 enclosed  $22,328.46 
Rawsonville Road  2393 enclosed yes $143,581.68 
Raymond Meadows Site Condo 1998 5802 enclosed  $261,099.56 
Recreation Park Sub 1929 10944 enclosed   $492,457.98 
Shady Knolls 1955 6981 enclosed   $314,145.99 
Sines Extension  1922 2755 open   $41,318.44 
Smokler-Textile 1972 10750 enclosed   $483,758.48 
Spruce Falls Subdivision 1989 1933 enclosed  $87,000.80 
Streamwood #3 and #4 1993 7138 enclosed   $321,229.56 
Streamwood #5 1994 2714 enclosed  $122,152.15 
Streamwood #6 1994 4482 enclosed  $201,673.45 
Streamwood #7 1994 6299 enclosed  $283,459.50 
Streamwood #8 1995 5195 enclosed  $233,758.06 
Streamwood Sub 1992 6616 enclosed  $297,698.42 
Swan Creek & Pliney Harris 2017 2621 open   $39,307.58 
The Pines Sub 1961 6565 enclosed  $295,439.99 
Tremont Park Subdivision 2000 15714 enclosed   $707,134.04 
Tyler Dam Drain 2017 8752 open  $131,280 
Upper Paint Creek 1966 11147 combination yes $416,410.35 
Washtenaw-Clubview #1 1928 11793 enclosed   $530,668.30 
Washtenaw-Clubview #2 1928 7371 enclosed   $331,715.04 
W Branch of Paint Creek 1860 4110 open  $61,648.95 
Westlawn 1966 4399 enclosed yes $263,924.97 
Whispering Meadows 1999 16867 enclosed  $759,009.11 
Whittaker Village 2001 6540 enclosed   $294,314.99 
Whittaker-Textile 1977 2836 combination  $94,164.68 
Willow Run 1967 2838 combination yes $143,033.02 
Willow Run Ext 1 & Brnchs 1971 2295 enclosed yes $137,710.30 
Ypsilanti Twp #01 1965 3323 enclosed yes $199,385.11 
Ypsilanti Twp #02 1976 890 enclosed yes $53,388.93 
Ypsilanti Twp #03 1967 3583 enclosed yes $214,997.07 
Ypsilanti Twp #04 1965 11090 enclosed yes $665,373.40 
Ypsilanti Twp #05 1966 1089 enclosed yes $65,320.03 
Ypsilanti Twp #06 1966 3146 enclosed yes $188,746.17 
Ypsilanti Twp #07 1967 22661 enclosed yes $1,359,673.48 
Ypsilanti Twp #07 Ext 1970 3096 enclosed yes $185,773.59 
Ypsilanti Twp #08 1969 6629 enclosed yes $397,769.50 
Ypsilanti Twp #09 1969 3490 enclosed yes $209,415.04 
Ypsilanti Twp #09 Ext 1974 1316 enclosed yes $78,973.51 
Ypsilanti Twp #10 1969 2048 enclosed yes $122,901.02 
Ypsilanti Twp #11 1975 3724 enclosed yes $223,440.23 
Ypsilanti Twp #12 1970 2378 enclosed yes $142,673.44 
Ypsilanti Twp #13 1972 19700 enclosed yes $1,182,020.98 
Ypsilanti Twp #13 Ext 1971 8291 enclosed yes $497,469.32 
Ypsilanti Twp #14 1969 574 enclosed yes $34,434.65 
Ypsilanti Twp #01 Consol 1972 7432 enclosed yes $445,936.88 
Ypsilanti Twp #02 Consol 1974 2325 enclosed yes $139,490.14 
Beyer Dam 1939  dam  $4,625,000.00 
Tyler Dam   dam  $5,375,000.00 
TOTAL  132 miles  $42,999,505.77 

 



7 | P a g e  

 

 

Please note that drain values are approximate and would need to be analyzed on a drain-specific basis for more precise 
cost estimates. 

It is worth mentioning chapter 20 drain charges are the responsibility of the local municipality to pay in their entirety, while 
other drains are apportioned to local property owners/Washtenaw County/railroads in addition to the local municipality. 
In most of these cases, the local unit’s percentage averages between 5 and 30 percent. 

The network of county drain assets does not comprise all storm water runoff conveyance in the Township. There are rivers 
and streams, road culverts, ditches, and private drains that are not designated county drains. 

Goals and Objectives of Asset Ownership 
Our goal in managing infrastructure assets is to reduce reactive maintenance through proactive measures, thereby 
reducing overall costs for present and future consumers. The key elements of infrastructure asset management are: 

 Providing a defined level of service and monitoring performance, 

 Managing the impact of growth through demand management and infrastructure investment, 

 Taking a lifecycle approach to developing cost-effective management strategies for the long-term that meet the 
defined level of service, 

 Identifying, assessing and appropriately controlling risks, and  

 Linking to a long-term financial plan which identifies required, affordable expenditure and how it will be allocated. 

We would like to propose this plan act as the first step in an annual process where we work with you to identify and 
recommend improvements, making adjustments as necessary as the township gets feedback from the residents. 

LEVELS OF SERVICE 

Expectations 
This asset management plan is prepared to facilitate consultation prior to adoption by Ypsilanti Township and the Water 
Resources Office.  Future revisions of the asset management plan will incorporate community consultation on service levels 
and costs of providing the service. This will assist Washtenaw County, the Township Supervisor, and particularly the Board 
of Trustees in matching the level of service required, service risks and consequences with the community’s ability and 
willingness to pay for the service. 

Strategic Goals 
This asset management plan is prepared under the direction of the Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner’s 
vision, mission, goals and objectives. 

Our vision is: 

To efficiently address drainage and water quality needs of County residents and communities.  

Our mission is: 

To provide for the health, safety and welfare of Washtenaw County citizens and the protection of surface water and the 
environment and to promote the long term environmental and economic sustainability of Washtenaw County by providing 
storm water management, flood control, development review and water quality programs. 

 

  



8 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Relevant goals and objectives and how these are addressed in this asset management plan are: 

Table 2:  Goals and how these are addressed in this Plan 

Goal Objective How Goal and Objectives are addressed in AM Plan 

Maintain drainage 
network in a cost-
effective manner. 

Continue to transition from 
reactive service requests to 
proactive maintenance. 

Identifies drain segments that require proactive 
maintenance to reduce the likelihood of service requests 

Reduce 
downstream 
sedimentation 

Remove sediment from 
channels 

Identify brush and streambank/other erosion projects for 
open drains. Intercept solids upstream of piped systems 
(through post-construction controls, development 
regulations, and other govt. agency BMP’s) 

Correct drainage 
networks already in 
various states of 
failure 

Restore systems to working 
condition and prevent/reduce 
incidents of flooding 

Identify systems that need to be renewed or re-
constructed and prepare an estimate for initial costs 

Levels of Service 
Supporting the customer service levels are operational or technical measures of performance. These technical measures 
relate to the allocation of resources to service activities to best achieve the desired customer outcomes and demonstrate 
effective performance. 

Technical service measures are linked to the activities and annual budgets covering: 

 Operations – the regular activities to provide services (e.g. opening hours, cleansing, energy, inspections, etc.) 

 Maintenance – the activities necessary to retain an asset as near as practicable to an appropriate service condition. 
Maintenance activities enable an asset to provide service for its planned life (e.g. structure repairs, sediment 
removal, mowing, vactoring), 

 Renewal – the activities that return the service capability of an asset up to that which it had originally (e.g. road 
resurfacing and pavement reconstruction, pipeline replacement and building component replacement), 

 Upgrade/New – the activities to provide a higher level of service (e.g. adding drainage branches, replacing a 
pipeline with a larger size) or a new service that did not exist previously (e.g. a new drain). 

It is important to monitor the service levels provided through regular customer dialogue as these will change. The current 
performance is influences by work efficiencies and technology, and customer priorities will change over time. Review and 
establishment of the agreed position which achieves the best balance between service, risk and cost is essential. 

  



9 | P a g e  

 

 

LIFECYCLE MANAGEMENT PLAN 
The lifecycle management plan details how the WCWRC plans to manage and operate the assets at the agreed levels of 
service while managing life cycle costs. 

Background Data 
County drains in Ypsilanti Township were mostly established between 1900 and the 1950s. Some pre-date this range and 
were inherited from the original Township jurisdiction common in the 1800s. A few were established more recently in the 
past 50 years.  

Most importantly, drains have a wide range of easement access. Some drains have easements, others do not. Easement 
widths vary.  

Budget 
The chart below summarizes the proposed total Township budget for upcoming years, broken down into typical costs for 
the primary maintenance activity we normally perform as well as proposed activities. The chart includes sections outlining 
estimated regular (reactive) maintenance, preventative operations and maintenance activities, and proposed renewals. 
Please note, as a comparison, that the past four year overall average spending has been approximately $705,000 with the 
Ypsilanti Township share constituting approximately $323,000. 

Table 3:  Proposed Asset Management Plan 

Year Activity Total Cost Township share 

    
2019 Regular maintenance (customer service 

requests) 
$415,000 $124,500 

 Proactive maintenance $89,750 $65,750 
 Renewals $222,500 $127,250 
 Initial inspection $31,500 $11,000 
  $758,750 $328,500 
    
2020 Regular maintenance (customer service 

requests) 
$340,000 $102,000 

 Proactive maintenance $185,000 $128,500 
 Renewals $210,000 $207,500 
 Initial inspection $13,000 $11,500 
    
2021-2025 Regular maintenance (customer service 

requests) 
$325,000* $97,500* 

 Proactive maintenance $151,750** $47,250** 
 Renewals $925,000** $325,000** 
 Initial inspection $16,500** $6,500** 

*annual estimated costs 

 **total 4 year expenditures 

Regular Maintenance 
Reactive expenditures currently constitute the majority of our office’s efforts in Ypsilanti Township, consisting primarily of 
responding to service request calls. This category also includes post-storm event inspections in the urbanized areas of the 
township north of Ford Lake, where we maintain a large amount of infrastructure located within the public roadways. Many 
roadside inlet structures frequently need to be cleared of debris to allow for drainage, which our field operations performs 
on a seasonal or storm by storm basis depending on history. 



10 | P a g e  

 

 

Other reactive expenditures include instances where portions of the storm water management system fail and need 
immediate repair to make them operational again. This can include replacement of pipe sections in enclosed systems, and 
clearing/woody growth removal in the open channels. 

Without an investment in drain renewal or pro-active maintenance, evidence strongly suggests that reactive maintenance 
costs will escalate within the next 10 years. Pipe failures at the Huron Center Commercial & Office Park Drain (Eagle Crest 
property), flooding issues within the Streamwood development, continued response to concerns at Partridge Creek, and 
others are indicators of aging storm water systems that are beginning to fail. Shifting the focus to pro-active measures now 
should result in reduced costs in reactive maintenance in the future, more than off-setting the additional investment of 
funds in the near term. An added benefit will be the reduction in unexpected expenditures and aid in budget forecasting. 

Proactive Maintenance Plan 
Operations include regular activities to provide services such as public health, safety and amenity, e.g. mowing, light 
cleaning and removal of minor debris that blocks flow at culvert crossings and inlets, and mechanical flushing/cleaning of 
the pipe network.  

Maintenance includes all actions necessary for retaining an asset as near as practicable to an appropriate service condition 
including regular ongoing day-to-day work necessary to keep assets operating. The consequences of not performing 
recommended maintenance are a continuation of problems that are seen and heard about throughout the township for at 
least the past 20-30 years. There is additional risk of flooding along with continued standing water for longer periods of 
time, and the resident concerns such as mosquitos, loss of land use, impact to agriculture, etc. 

Renewal/Replacement Plan 
Renewal and replacement expenditures are major works which do not increase the asset’s design capacity but restores, 
rehabilitates, replaces or renews an existing asset to its original service potential.  Work over and above restoring an asset 
to original service potential is considered to be an upgrade/expansion or new work expenditure resulting in additional 
future operations and maintenance costs. 

Replacement, while not as preferable as ongoing maintenance, will lead to the drains having greatly reduced maintenance 
costs, generally just mowing or inlet and pipe cleaning.  
 
Further refinement of prioritization can be attained to develop more systematic schedules and budgets for renewals 
(brushing and ditching, plus sumps), after some analysis of the inspection point data. Scoring systems with one or more 
factors are common. For example, sediment depths along multiple open drain segments is one factor that yields a score 
for a length of drain. For funding purposes, it might be beneficial to make sediment the only factor for a sediment specific 
linear score so nonpoint source projects and sediment removal can be prioritized. Our office is currently working to develop 
a scoring system that will flag infrastructure needing a closer look for programming decisions. 

 
Summary of future renewal and replacement expenditure 

The projected capital renewal and replacement program is shown in more detail in the attached appendix. This includes 
which specific county drains would be scheduled for renewal along with approximate costs of doing so. These systems were 
chosen based upon the volume of service requests, age and condition of the drain, and the overall consequences should 
the drain experience a failure. For example, there may be systems in wooded environments that do not cause extreme 
property or structural damage should the drain overflow its banks, while others in residential neighborhoods may cause 
flooding for the travelling public or on personal property. 

It is assumed that open channels will not be replaced, and upgrades to capacity are not warranted due to downstream flow 
restrictions (road culverts) and a desire to improve infiltration hydrology, not capacity. It is further assumed that all the 
open channels are subject to renewal (brushing, ditching and sediment “dip outs”). 



11 | P a g e  

 

 

Creation/Acquisition/Upgrade Plan 
New works are those that create a new asset that did not previously exist, or works which will upgrade or improve an 
existing asset beyond its existing function or capacity.  They may result from growth, social or environmental needs.  Assets 
may also be acquired at no cost. 

While factored into the asset management plan, the creation of new infrastructure is not budgeted as currently the 
majority of new drains within the township are built and funded by private development. These include residential site 
condominiums and plats whereby the owner agrees to build the storm water management system for future inclusion into 
the county drainage network. However, every mile of new infrastructure increases long term maintenance needs. 

While other new drains may be created, such as the Tyler Dam Drain, there are no future anticipated projects to budget at 
this time. This may be adjusted, however, if future needs are determined through conversations with the township. 

Finally, the creation of new storm water management systems will necessitate adjustments to the preventative 
maintenance budget as those drains will also benefit from ongoing and periodic proactive work. 

Summary of asset expenditure requirements 

The financial projections from this asset plan are shown in the appendix for projected operating (operations and 
maintenance) and capital expenditure (renewal and upgrade/expansion/new assets).  Note that all costs are shown in real 
values. 

Ongoing operations and maintenance are generally within budget projections save minor growth over time in O&M 
compared to a flat budget. This represents a continuation of current O&M practices of both maintaining proactive and 
service request events within both the $5,000 per mile limit and continuation of established tolerance for at large and 
parcel assessments.  

Renewal projects would require petitioning or some other source of funding (e.g. grants) to complete. 

Initial Inspection Plan 
A portion of the Ypsilanti Township county drains have not been inspected, formally or informally, in a number of years. 
We proposed to use conditional assessment techniques to rate the present condition of these drains as a method to 
continually improve the action plan presented herein. 

Conditional assessment ratings can be used to determine a probability of failure for a drainage system, which can be of 
great assistance in determining future renewal priorities. Knowing a rough risk of a storm management failure, however, 
cannot be the sole deciding factor for a plan of action. In some cases (i.e. natural areas, open spaces, easily accessible 
infrastructure, etc.) a failing drain will not have as severe consequences to the surrounding property or structures. For 
example, the consequence of a deep, large diameter urbanized drain collapsing versus an open channel becoming blocked 
within a nature preserve would cause major financial and property damage. A good asset management plan takes both the 
condition of the drain along its potential consequences as a result of failure to prioritize work. 

Our inspection recommendations include evaluating the condition of some CMP (corrugated metal pipe) systems within 
the next 5 years. This is of note because several of the township’s CMP drains are close to or exceed 50 years in age, which 
correlates to the life expectancy of the pipes and failures related to extensive rusting (deformed/crushed sections where 
the pipe can no longer support the overlying soils, “blowholes” and blockages due to voids forming, or root intrusion into 
the lines). The outcome of these inspections may impact the asset management program by introducing additional 
renewals that would need to be prioritized within the overall plan. 

  



12 | P a g e  

 

 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN 
The purpose of infrastructure risk management is to document the results and recommendations resulting from the 
periodic identification, assessment and treatment of risks associated with providing services from infrastructure. 

The risk assessment process identifies credible risks, the likelihood of the risk event occurring, the consequences should 
the event occur, develops a risk rating, evaluates the risk and develops a risk treatment plan for non-acceptable risks. 

Critical Assets 
Critical assets are defined as those which have a high consequence of failure causing significant loss or reduction of 
service.  Similarly, critical failure modes are those which have the highest consequences. 

Critical assets have been identified and their typical failure mode and the impact on service delivery are as follows: 

Table 4 - Critical Assets 

Critical Asset(s) Failure Mode Impact 

Segments adjacent to 
actively farmed land 

Overflow and potential 
crop loss  

Reactive mode and 
overtime. Deferred 
response elsewhere 

Marginally operational tile 
in Agriculture areas 

Blocked, collapsed Inability to access during 
growing season 

End sections at road 
crossings 

Blockage, headwall and 
end section failure, 
erosion 

Costly repairs limit ability to 
perform other maintenance 
due to spending limits.  

Gravity main systems 
under or adjacent to 
roadways 

“Blow hole” pipe 
collapses, sink holes at 
catch structure inlets 

Potential structural damage 
to private property, 
restoration challenges 

 

By identifying critical assets and failure modes investigative activities, condition inspection programs, maintenance and 
capital expenditure plans can be targeted at the critical areas. 

Risk Assessment 
The risk management process used in this project is shown in the figure below. 

It is an analysis and problem solving technique designed to provide a logical process for the selection of treatment plans 
and management actions to protect the community against unacceptable risks. 

  



13 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Table 5 - Risk Management Process – Abridged 

 

 

The risk assessment process identifies credible risks, the likelihood of the risk event occurring, the consequences should 
the event occur, develops a risk rating, evaluates the risk and develops a risk treatment plan for non-acceptable risks. 

An assessment of risks associated with service delivery from infrastructure assets has identified the critical risks that will 
result in significant loss, ‘financial shock‘, or a reduction in service.   

Service and Risk Trade-Offs 
The decisions made in adopting this asset management plan are based on the objective to achieve the optimum benefits 
from the available resources. 

What we cannot do 

There are some operations and maintenance activities and capital projects that are unable to be undertaken within the 
next 10 years.  These include: 

 Stream bank stabilization to address morphological changes occurring. Watershed management planning and grant 
funding may improve abilities.  

 Maintainable sediment storage throughout the planning area. Needs dictate we find the most easily achievable 
locations now and identify future locations for discussion and development. This would be a separate planning and 
engineering analysis.  

  
Service trade-off 

Operations and maintenance activities and capital projects that cannot be undertaken will maintain or create service 
consequences for users.  These include: 

 Flow limitations 

 Increased sedimentation rates 

 Continued phosphorus and nonpoint source loading 
 
Risk trade-off 

The operations and maintenance activities and capital projects that cannot be undertaken may maintain or create risk 
consequences.  These include: 

 Larger reactive maintenance in the future 

 Inefficiencies in balancing reactive vs proactive maintenance 

 Future TMDL 

TREAT RISKS

- Identify options
- Assess options
- Treatment plans

ANALYSE & 

EVALUATE RISKS

- Consequences
- Likelihood 
- Level of Risk
- Evaluate

IDENTIFY RISKS

- What can happen ?
- When and why ?
- How and why ?



14 | P a g e  

 

 

 Flooding 

 Need for critical emergency response 

 Property damage 

 Road damage or accelerated failure 

 

PLAN IMPROVEMENT AND MONITORING 

Monitoring and Review Procedures 
This asset management plan will be reviewed during annual budget planning processes and amended to show any material 
changes in service levels and/or resources available to provide those services as a result of budget decisions.  

The AM Plan will be updated annually to ensure it represents the current service level, asset values, projected operations, 
maintenance, capital renewal and replacement, capital upgrade/new and asset disposal expenditures and  projected 
expenditure values incorporated into the long term financial plan. 

The AM Plan has a life of 4 years and is due for complete revision and updating within 2 years of each election cycle of the 
Ypsilanti Township board. 

Performance Measures 
The effectiveness of the asset management plan can be measured in the following ways: 

 The degree to which the required projected expenditures identified in this asset management plan are 
incorporated into the long term financial plan, 

 The degree to which 1-5 year detailed works programs, budgets, business plans and corporate structures take into 
account the ‘global’ works program trends provided by the asset management plan, 

 The degree to which the existing and projected service levels and service consequences (what we cannot do), risks 
and residual risks are incorporated into the Strategic Plan and associated plans. 

Key Assumptions made in AM Plan and Risks of Change 

 Open channel conveyance systems do not have a defined useful life. 

 Additions to the system would be limited or non-existent in the next 10 years.  

 The Township’s ability to absorb special assessments may limited by their annual budget. This would affect the 
number and size of projects undertaken under the plan 

 Some debt service, at least for the larger renewals, is likely needed to manage and optimize the risk-expenditure 
relationship. 

 Risk is associated with probability of failure (condition related to debris jams and log jams) and consequence of 
failure (proximity to cropland subject to loss).  

 

  



15 | P a g e  

 

 

SUMMARY 

Should you approve this initial pilot program, we would anticipate working with you over your  next budget cycle to provide 
a 5-year program proposal that would start showing a noticeable change in several parts of the Township in four ways. 

 Property being usable for more days of the year 

  A reduction in depth and frequency of standing water and related public health issues in those drains where 
maintenance is performed 

  Our drain clean out work will reduce the need for service calls in those areas, correspondingly reducing the 
Township’s risk of extensive service. 

 We would also anticipate a modest but noticeable improvement in property values over a 5-year timeframe of 
maintenance improvement (versus Band-Aids) as with any infrastructure that is visibly kept in good working order. 

As the Board can imagine, these programmed expenditures would be subject to unusual weather such as heavy rains.  As 
part of this arrangement, we would propose to check in with the Township on the actual expenditures before proceeding 
with larger proactive maintenance projects, again considering the flexibility of timing afforded by our differing budget 
cycles to stay within the total amount noted above. 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide what would be a high value improvement to residents at a modest cost.  As you 
are aware, property owners share in the costs of some special assessment work, and we have reviewed mock assessment 
rolls to ensure that there is no undue burden placed on property owners.  These appear to be reasonably affordable 
projects when the costs are shared.  The average one-time property owner share for clearing an open drain, for example, 
would be less than 10 dollars. Actual costs are correlated to acreage owned. In other communities we have found that 
property owners appreciate that the Township is also sharing in the cost, and as you may recall, the Road Commission and 
MDOT will contribute a share of the costs as well. 

Next Steps 
The following appendices contain specific action steps, some of which exceed the annual statutory spending limit of 
$5000 per mile of drain. A resolution from Ypsilanti Township (which our office can draft) to exceed this limit would be 
required in such instances to authorize the work to proceed. As the intent of this plan is to be a collaborate effort 
between our offices, we would be pleased to present the overall asset management plan at your next township board 
meeting and/or working session in order to refine the objectives to best serve the township’s priorities and budget. This 
interactive process may then defer or, in some cases, eliminate some items of work proposed while possibly providing 
new information to our office. 

  



16 | P a g e  

 

 

APPENDICES 
Appendix A Proposed budget recommendations by drain/activity 

 2019    

Activity Name of Drain Work proposed Total 
cost 

Twp % 
 

Twp 
portion 

      

Reactive 
maintenance 

Various Various $415,000 30* $124,500 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Willow Run Clearing open channel $14,750 85 $12,500 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Tyler Dam Clearing open channel $5,000 35 $1,750 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Various Mowing program $15,000 43** $6,500 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Ypsilanti Township 
#1 

Cleaning/vactoring $20,000 80 $16,000 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Ypsilanti Township 
#8 

Cleaning/vactoring $35,000 83 $29,000 

Initial inspection Budd Conditional assessment $9,500 35 $3,250 

Initial inspection Oakland Estates Sub Conditional assessment $22,000 35 $7,750 

Renewal Beyer Relief Catch structure 
rehabilitation 

$110,000 73 $80,250 

Renewal Recreation Park Sub Structures and sumps $97,500 35 $34,000 

Renewal Ypsilanti Township 
#1 Consol. 

Tree removal, root 
intrusions 

$15,000 86 $13,000 

   $758,750  $328,500 

*Indicates an average apportionment of drains within Ypsilanti Township 
**Indicates an average apportionment of mowed drains within Ypsilanti Township 
  



17 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

2020    

Activity Name of Drain Work proposed Total 
cost 

Twp % 
 

Twp 
Portion 

      

Reactive 
maintenance 

 Various $340,000 30* $102,000 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Gorton Clearing open channel $42,500 35 $15,000 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Derbyshire Clearing open channel $6,000 35 $2,000 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Various Mowing program $16,500 47** $7,750 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Ypsilanti Twp #13 Cleaning/vactoring $85,000 90 $76,500 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Ypsilanti Twp #13 
Ext. 

Cleaning/vactoring $35,000 78 $27,250 

Initial inspection Ypsilanti Twp #7 Ext. Conditional assessment $6,000 92 $5,500 

Initial inspection Ypsilanti Twp #11 Conditional assessment $7,000 84 $6,000 

Renewal North Ford Lake 
Consol. 

Structures, eroded outfalls $195,000 100 $195,000 

Renewal Ypsilanti Twp #10 Structures and gravity 
main 

$15,000 78 $12,500 

   $748,000  $449,500 

*Indicates an average apportionment of drains within Ypsilanti Township 
**Indicates an average apportionment of mowed drains within Ypsilanti Township 
  



18 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 2021-2025    

Activity Name of Drain Work proposed Total cost Twp % 
 

Twp 
Portion 

      

Reactive 
maintenance 

 Various $325,000 30* $97,500 

Proactive 
maintenance 

N. Br. Big Swan Creek 
IC 

Clearing open channel $22,500 5 $1,250 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Brock Clearing open channel $3,750 35 $1,250 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Eaton Clearing open channel $3,750 35 $1,250 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Miller Clearing open channel $7,500 30 $2,250 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Sines Ext. Clearing open channel $3,250 34 $1,250 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Various Mowing program $21,000 40** $8,500 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Wash-Clubview #1 Cleaning/vactoring $55,000 35 $19,250 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Wash-Clubview #2 Cleaning/vactoring $35,000 35 $12,250 

Initial inspection Ypsilanti Township 
#14 

Conditional assessment $1,500 78 $1,250 

Initial inspection The Pines Sub Conditional assessment $15,000 35 $5,250 

Renewal Smokler-Textile Rear yard collection 
replacement 

$925,000 35 $325,000 

   $1,418,250  $476,250 

*Indicates an average apportionment of drains within Ypsilanti Township 
**Indicates an average apportionment of mowed drains within Ypsilanti Township 
 



® 0 3,2001,600
Feet

I²

!"̀$

!"̀$

?â I±

?â

?â I²

Laflin

G
orton

R
yan

Eaton

D
erbysh

ire

S
w

an
 C

reek &
 Plin

ey H
arris

N
orth

 B
ran

ch
 of B

ig S
w

an
 C

reek IC

Miller

W
illow Run

N
orth

B
ran

ch
o fB

ig
S w

a n
C

reek
IC

Y p s i la n t i T o w n s h ip # 0 7

U
p

p
er Paint C

reek

Ypsilanti 
Township #13

Extension

Ypsilanti Township
 #9 Ext

*

Recr
eation Park

Subdivisio
n

O
w

en

Budd

R
aw

son
ville

R
oad

Westlawn

Snidecar

*
Sand Creek

*
Silverleaf

Brock
Tile

*
Georgetown

Condominiums

*
G

reenfields

*
Aspen
Ridge

*
Greene Farms

*
Golf Estates

Beyer Relief

Shady
Knolls

*
Crystal 
Creek

*
Zeke Run Farm

Fairway 
Glens

*

Amberly
Grove

*

*
Lincoln 

Pines
Phase I

Gault
Village

Nancy Park #3

Je
ro

m
e 

S
tr

ee
t

*
Hickory Pointe

Carpenter Road

*
Bestech 
Center

Sm
okler-Textile

*
South Ford Lake

*
Branch of

Horner

*
Clubview
Estates

Deauville
Parish

W
hittaker-Textile

*
Whittaker

Village

Ford 
Lake

Heights

Ypsilanti 
Tow

nsh
ip #14

Whispering
Meadows

Streamwood 

*
Willow Pond

Pittsfield-C
lu

bview

*
Arbor Meadows

Ford Lake
V

illage #1

Ford 
Lake

Village 
#2

Ford Lake
Heights #5

Ford 
Lake

Heights
#2

Ford Lake
Heights #3Ford 

Lake
Heights #4

*
The Pines

Subdivision

Washtenaw-
Clubview #2

Washtenaw-
Clubview #1

*
Huron Dam
Subdivision

Ypsilanti 
Tow

nsh
ip

#06

*
Meadowview 
Subdivision

Ypsilanti Township
#07 Extension

Y p s i la n t i T o w n sh ip # 1 3

*
Creekside 

Village
West

*
Creekside

Village
East

Y p s i la n t i T o w n sh ip # 1 1

Ypsilanti 
Township

#01

Ypsilanti 
Township

#05

Ypsilanti 
Township

#03

*
Creekside

Village
South

Gault Farms
Subdivision

*
Partridge Creek

*
R

aym
ond

M
eadow

s
Site C

on
do

*
Oakland
Estates

Subdivision

*
Ashford Village

Subdivision

*
Pineview Golf

Course Estates

*
Oak Park & Washtenaw Heights

*
Trem

ont Park 
Su

bdivision
 # 1

Ypsilanti 
Township

#04

*
Pineview Golf Course

Estates #2

*
Huron 
Center 

Commercial
& Office

*
Pineview 

Golf Course
Estates North

*
Huron Center Commercial

& Industrial

Spruce Falls 
Subdivision
& Extension

O
w

en
 R

elief

West 
Branch
of Owen

Ypsilanti 
Township

#12
Ypsilanti Township
#01 Consolidated

Ypsilanti 
Township

#02

N
ich

olls

Ypsilanti 
Township

#02 Consolidated
Owen Outlet

Willow Run 
Extension

*
Upper

Paint

Creek

U
pp

er
 P

ai
n

t 
C

re
ek

Owen 
Extension

Packard Branch 
of Paint Creek

University
Palisades

Ypsilanti 
Township #9

Ypsila
nti 

Tow
nsh

ip #1
0

*
Lincoln 

Pines
Ph II

*
Huron 

Commons

Michigan Ave.
East Central

*
Arborwoods III

Streamwood
3 & 4

St
re

am
w

oo
d

#5

Streamwood
#8

St
re

am
wo

od
#6

St
re

am
w

oo
d

# 
7

*
Lakewood Farms

*
Arbor 

Ridge II

Sines Extension

Ypsilanti Township #08

Hamilton
Tile

Huron
River

Huron River

Ford Lake

Huron
River

E Clark Rd
Clark Rd

W
hi

tta
k e

rR
d

E Cross St

N Huron St

Textile Rd

W
hittaker R

d

E Ellsworth Rd

Textile Rd

Textile Rd

S H
ew

itt R
d

Le
fo

rg
e

R
d

S 
H

ur
on

 S
t

S G
rove St

E
Hur

on
R

ive
r D

r

W
ia

rd
 R

d

R
id

ge
 R

d

R
aw

sonville R
d

S 
H

am
ilt

on
 S

tS Congress St

W
Mich

igan Ave

Ston
y C

ree
k R

d

G
ol

fs
id

e
R

d

Packard Rd

Grove Rd

E Huron River Dr

N
 P

ro
sp

ec
t S

t

C
ar

pe
nt

er
 R

d
C

ar
pe

nt
er

 R
d

E Michigan Ave

S
H

ur
on

St

Holmes Rd

Tyler Rd

H
og

ba
ck

 R
d

C
ar

pe
nt

er
 R

d

Textile Rd
W

iard R
d

N
H

ew
it t

R
d

Holmes Rd

Su
pe

rio
r R

d

Ecorse Rd

Br
id

ge
 R

d

N
 F

or
d 

B
lv

d

St
on

y 
Cr

ee
k 

Rd

W Clark Rd

Spinnaker Way

N
 N

orm
al St

L a
ke

D
r

G
lenw

ood Ave

Pa
rk

 E
st

at
es

 D
r

Lakeview Ave

S 
H

ar
ris

 R
d

Pearl St

O
w

en
da

le
 S

t

Grant St

N
Brookston

Dr

NAshford Way

Holmes Rd

H
itchingham

 R
d

Emmet St

Hickory Pointe Blvd

Cottonwood Dr

Bu
nt

on
 R

d

Martz Rd

Hu
nt

C
lu

b
D

r

Colcheste r
Ln

M
un

ge
r R

d
M

un
ge

r R
d

Merritt Rd

S Huron River Dr

La goon Dr

H
om

es te ad

Rd

E Bemis Rd

Stamford Rd

C
ra

ne
R

d
Gregory St

El
m

 S
t

Stadium

V iew Dr

Wen
de

ll A
ve

Christina

Dr

D
or

se
t A

ve

Timothy Trl

Davis St

Stevens
Dr

Lakeshore
Blvd

ArborM
e ad ow

D
r

Ri
dg

ew
oo

d
D

r

M
cC

ar
tn

ey
Av

e

Kingwood St

First Ave

Railroad St

East w ood Ter

O
re

go
n 

St

N
 R

iv
er

 S
t

Airport Dr

Ed
is

on
 S

t

M
cAu ley

D
r

Green Rd

Valley Dr

Mott Rd

Pe
n

R
un

Ecorse Rd

H
ar

ry
 S

t

Woodruff Ln

H
ay

es
 S

t

RooseveltBlvd

Ai
rp

or
t I

nd
us

tri
al

D
r

Jones St

Tim

ber Ri d g
e

Dr

W
oodglen Ave

Towner St

Tyler Rd

Canyon Dr

B
oyne

Dr

W
oodview Rd

Bi
g

Pi
ne

D
r

R
aw

so
nv

ille
 R

d

Eu
ge

ne
 S

t

M
ap

le
vi

ew
Ln

Th
or

nh
ill 

Dr

D
ev

on
sh

ire
 S

t

M
aplelaw

n D
r

Russell St

Pi
tc

h
P i

ne

Ln W

Greene Farm Dr

E Clark Rd

S
M

ansfield
St

Be
rw

ic
k

D
r

O
na

nd
ag

a 
St

M
ichael Dr

Ce
nt

ur
y

Tr
l

Essex Dr

A
m

be
r

W

ay

R
ob

er
t

Cir

Swan LakeCir

S ilve rlea f
Dr

Fairhills D
r

King Richard

Collegewood St

Th
et

fo
rd

Ln

Cloverlane Dr

Sh
ar

e
Av

e

Joan Cir

N
as

h 
Av

e

Parkland Dr

Jac k
Pin e

D
r

H
aw

ks
 A

ve

Merritt Rd

Sunnydale Ave

Colony Way

Blue
Jay

D
r

Crys talC
ree k

D
r

Su
nr

ise
D

r

D
ev

on
St

Country View Dr

Huron River Dr

Ambassador
Dr

Da
wn

 A
ve

M
un

ge
r R

d

Po
pl

ar
 D

r

Bl
os

so

m
Hill Trl

D
es

ot
o 

Av
e

Oakridge Dr

Sherman St

As
pe

n 
W

ay

Coolidge Rd

D
es

ot
o 

Av
e

N
M

or
le

y
D

r

S C
lubview

 St

Briarbrook Dr

Creekway

Ba
yb

er
ry

St

Maple StFa
irv

iew
C

ir

G
eo

rg
in

a
D

r

State St

N
ash Ave

C
re

ek
be

nd
Dr

Roxbury Dr

Dover Dr

C
he

rry
w

oo
dD

r

N
C

lu
b v

ie
w

St

Ba
lla

rd
 S

t

N
at

al
ie

 D
r

A
m

rhein
D

r

N
Adam

s
St

H
ul

l S
t

Nottingham Dr

Sm
ith

 S
t

Warwick Dr

Bay Tree Dr

Kirk Profit D
r

Shellbark Dr
N

 R
iv

er
 S

t

W
el

lin
gt

on
 L

n

Valley V iew
Dr

Mollie St Dorothy St

St
ep

he
ns

Dr

Pebbles to n e
Dr

E

lm
w

oo
d

D
r

Indigo Ln

N
ew

M
ea

do
w

Dr

Sh effie ld
D

r

Long Meado
w

Ln

Chevrolet St

Jo
yc

e 
Vi

ew
 D

r

Tyler Rd

Par
kw

oo
d Av

e

Joe Hall Dr

Willo
wbr

idg
eRd

Creekside
C

ir

Foley Ave

Evelyn Ave

Ruth Ave Mary Catherine St

George Ave

Oak StOak St

N
M

an
sf

ie
ld

S t

Conway Ave

Elliott Dr

Ha
m

let
Dr

Eastlawn St

Service Dr

Hunter Ave

O
sb

an
d 

St

C
ha

rle
s 

St
Thoroughbred

W
ay

International Dr

En
ch

a n
te

d
D

r

Midvale St

Juneau Rd

Lathers S
t

Andrea St

Paint Creek Dr

Russell St

H
ogan D

r

G
le n dale Dr

I94
 S

er
vic

e R
d

Cole
m

an
St

Le
st

er
 A

ve

James L Hart Pkwy

H
ol

lis
 A

ve

P
i n

ev
i e

w
D

r

Burns St

Pam
el a Dr

N
 P

ar
k 

St

Pearl St

Redleaf Ln

Tyler Rd

Lo
ri 

St

O
akw

ood St

Center Valley Dr

Davis St

Second Ave

G
re

en
si

de
 S

t

G
at

te
gn

o 
St

Monroe St

G
arland

St

R
osew

ood Ave

Lexington Pkwy

Rice St

Em
erick St

O
aklaw

n Ave

E F ores
t A

ve

Central Blvd

Tyrone
St

Br
ow

ni
ng

 S
t

R
am

bli
ng

Rd

Lake Crest Dr

Pinew
ood St

C
ou

rtl
an

d 
St

M
un

ge
r R

d

Westmoorland St

E G
rand Blvd

R
ue

D
e au vi ll e

B lvd

H
ills

id
e 

D
r

Cole Blvd

Pe
rri

n 
St

Henley Dr

Applew
ood

Dr

Shetland
D

r

E 
G

ra
nd

 B
lv

d

Morris St

W Clark Rd

Lilly Dr

Buckley
Dr

Harm
on

St

B rooksid
e

St

Lakeridge Dr

Sherman St

Se
av

er
D

r

Chester Dr

Ruby St

Lilac
Ln

N
 G

ro
ve

 S
t

Diamond St

M
ea

do
w

la
rk

Ln

Olive St

C
he

rry

Bloss
om Dr

Woodward St

M
ap

le
 D

r

Cliffs Dr

H
untington Dr

W
oo

da
le

 A
ve

Panama Ave

M
cA

ule
y Dr

M
id

w
ay

 S
t

Sy
ca

m
or

e
Dr

Watling St

H
el

en
 S

t

Parkwood Ave

G
re

en
la

w
n 

St

O
akb rook Dr

Madison St

C
lo

ve
rla

w
n 

Av
e

Jefferson St

Village Ln

Fo
x 

Av
e

W
oodlaw

n Ave

Tu
ttl

e 
H

ill 
R

d

Beverly St

Elder St

Mac
ar

thu
r B

lvd

Lam
ay Ave

Concord

D
r

O
ak

da
le

D
r

Trillium Dr

Shirley Dr

St
on

eh
am

D
r

Rachel Dr

H
ick or y Hollow Dr

Skyway Dr

D
ak

ot
a 

Av
e

D
al

to
n 

Av
e

D
ayton D

r

Lev on a
S t

Merritt Rd

Wismer St

Jerom
e Ave

Ba
gl

ey
 A

ve

Fo
st

er
 A

ve

W
orden St

Id
e 

Av
e

Fa
irf

ie
ld

 S
t

Airport Service Rd

Whittier Rd

Tu
ttl

e 
H

ill 
R

d

Woburn Dr

G
au

l t
D

r

Mayhew St

Allen Ave

N
or

ris
 S

t

Auburndale Ave

Merritt Rd

Maplewood Ave

Parkwood Ave

Hawthorne Ave

D
w

ig
ht

 S
t

St
an

le
y 

St

H
em

ph
ill 

St

Tw
in

 T
ow

er
s 

St

Bradley Ave

H
i ll c

re
st

Bl
vd

C
am

pb
el

lA
ve

Lake vi ew Dr

S
As hfo rd

Wa y

D
ea

ke
 A

ve

Blossom Ave

Oakhurst Dr

O
ut

er
 L

n

C
rane R

d

Sw
ee

t R
d

W
e s

tv
ie

w
D

r

Draper Ave

C
ra

ne
R

d

O
ak

 D
r

To
rre

y 
Av

e

K a
ns

as
Av

e

C
al

de
r S

t

C
ar

y 
D

r

Se
m

in
ol

e 
R

d

M
cG

re
go

r R
d

H
ea rths i d e Dr

Merritt Rd

Bo
rg

st
ro

m
St

Harvest Ln

Ellis Rd

Rue
W

ille
tte

Bl
vd

Merrill St

Be
ec

h 
D

r

E Morgan Rd

M
ai

n 
Av

e

Hickory Ct

Wat e
rs

id
e

Xi
ng

Es
ta

te
s 

D
r

O
hi

o 
St

Crestwood Ave

NutmegDr

W
ia

rd
 R

d

C
ar

lto
n 

D
r

Harding Ave

CommonwealthAve

Carlton Dr

Oswe
go

St

Wiard Blvd

Orchard Ln

Ardis D
r

William Ave

McKinley Ave

Ly
nn

e
Av

e

Maxine Comm

on

El
lis

 R
d

W
oo dstream Dr

C
ry

st
al

 D
r

Suns
et

Tr
l

R
an

do
lp

h 
C

t

Crane Ct

G
ra

nt
Dr

C
en

te
nn

ia
l A

ve

D
eer C

reek D
r

D
ay

to
na

Av
e G

rayf i e ld Cir

Kensington Dr

Wildwood St

W
h

istlin
g Way

McGregor Rd

Snow Rd

Spencer Ln

Th
or

no
aks

Dr

D
ea

n 
D

r

M
cK

ea
n 

R
d

Sh
a d

y
Kn

ol
lL

n

Woodland Ct

H
itchingham

 R
d

Swallow Ln

W
atson St

G
lencoe

Hills Dr

Bunton R
d

M
cKean R

d

Morgan Rd

Merritt Rd

BrynM
awrLn

Bry n

M
aw

r

Ln

RobinhoodBlvd

Robinhood Blvd

Ainsw
o r th C ir

Bynan D
r

Indian Hills DrI ndian Hil ls Dr

1:19,200

Legend
Lakes

County Drain Systems

Waters of the State

Map Published On :

Ypsilanti Township
County Drain

Map

Date: 12/8/2017

Evan N. Pratt P.E.
Washtenaw County
Water Resources
Commissioner

705 N. Zeeb Rd.
Ann Arbor, MI 48107

Ph: 734-222-6860
Fax: 734-222-6803

www.washtenaw.org/drains

Appendix B Ypsilanti Township County Map

19| Page



705,606$         Four Year Average Spending (2015‐2018)
322,744$         Four Year Average Spending Ypsilanti Township Only

75,734$           Four Year Average Spending Ypsilanti Township Property Owners

759,250$         Proposed Spending 2019
328,500$         Proposed Spending 2019 Ypsilanti Township Only
178,000$         Proposed Spending 2019 Ypsilanti Township Property Owners

42,999,506$   Total Replacement Value, refer to page 6
0.75% Four Year Average Annual Ypsi Twp Spending to Total Replacement

0.18%
Four Year Average Annual Ypsi Twp Property Owners Spending to Total 
Replacement

Beyer Relief,  $86,814 , 17%

North Branch of Big Swan Creek IC,  $53,618 , 11%

North Ford Lake Consolidated,  $48,982 , 10%

Upper Paint Creek,  $33,084 , 7%

Partridge Creek,  $19,155 , 4%

Ypsilanti Township #07,  $14,738 , 3%

Ypsilanti Township #04,  $12,421 , 2%

Smokler‐Textile,  $11,819 , 2%

Recreation Park Subdivision,  $11,123 , 2%

Huron Center Commercial and Office,  $10,283 , 2%
West Branch of Paint Creek,  $8,230 , 2%

Ypsilanti Township #01 Consolidated,  $8,137 , 2%

Ypsilanti Township #13,  $7,601 , 1%

Spruce Falls Subdivision and Extension,  $7,387 , 1%

Sines,  $6,805 , 1%

Streamwood #7,  $6,176 , 1%

Tremont Park Subdivision,  $6,150 , 1%

Whittaker‐Textile,  $6,107 , 1%

Willow Run Extension #1,  $5,891 , 1%

Swan Creek and Pliney Harris,  $5,836 , 1%

Ypsilanti Township #03,  $5,243 , 1%
Streamwood #3 and #4,  $5,195 , 1%

Streamwood Subdivision,  $5,060 , 1%

72 Others (Less than $5000 Ave/Year),  $121,099 , 24%

YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP‐‐DRAIN SPENDING FOUR YEAR AVERAGE
(2015‐2018)

Appendix C Reactive Maintenance Summary

20| Page



Existing Mowing

2019

2020

2021-2025

Water Bodies

County Drain Systems

Road Centerlines

Mowing Program 
Summary
by Year
Ypsilanti Township

¯ 0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Appendix D Mowing Program Summary

21| Page



2019

2020

2021-2025

Water Bodies

County Drain Systems

Road Centerlines

Vactor / Cleaning 
Summary

by Year

Ypsilanti Township

¯ 0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Appendix E  Vactor/Cleaning Summary

22| Page



2019

2020

2021-2025

Water Bodies

County Drain Systems

Road Centerlines

Renewal Summary
Ypsilanti Township

¯ 0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Appendix F Vactor/Cleaning Summary

23| Page



Derbyshire
$2,000

Ypsilanti
Township #14
$1,250

The Pines
Sub
$5,250

Budd
$3,250

Miller
$2,250

Ypsilanti Twp #11
$6,000

Sines Ext.
$1,250

Ypsilanti Twp #7
Ext.

$5,500

Eaton
$1,250

Tyler Dam
$1,750

Brock
$1,250

N. Br. Big
Swan Creek IC
$1,250

Wash-Clubview #2
$12,250

Oakland
Estates Sub

$7,750

Ypsilanti Township
#1 Consol.
$13,000

Ypsilanti Twp #10
$12,500

Gorton
$15,000

Ypsilanti
Township #1
$16,000

Willow Run
$12,500

Ypsilanti
Township #8

$29,000

Ypsilanti Twp #13
Ext.
$27,250

Wash-Clubview #1
$19,250

Recreation
Park Sub
$34,000

Ypsilanti Twp #13
$76,500

Smokler-Textile
$325,000

North Ford
Lake Consol.
$195,000

Beyer Relief
$80,250

12

12
Packard Rd

W
Mich

igan Ave

W
hi

tta
ke

r R
d

Textile Rd

Bu
nt

on
 R

d

Martz Rd

E Forest Ave

S H
ew

itt R
d

N
H

ew
itt

R
d

Airport Dr

R
id

ge
 R

d

Washtenaw Ave

St
on

y 
C

re
ek

 R
d

Tyler Rd

Tu
ttl

e 
H

ill
 R

d

Ecorse Rd

R
aw

sonville R
d

E Michigan Ave

S H
arris R

d

Holmes Rd

Grove Rd

E Clark Rd

S Huron River Dr

S
H

ur
on

S
t

E Ellsworth Rd

W
iard R

d

E Cross St

Merritt Rd

M
cK

ea
n 

R
d

S 
Fo

rd
 B

lv
d

M
cG

re
go

r R
d

Ellis Rd

Br
id

ge
 R

d

N
 F

or
d 

B
lv

d

94

Total Proposed 
Spending Per Drain

Ypsilanti Township
Asset Management Plan

Washtenaw County
Reference Map

***Not to Scale***

0 0.5 1

Miles

Drain Projects
Cost

Low
Moderate
Medium
Highest

Published 1/26/2019

Geographic 
Information 

System

24| Page

Appendix G Overall AM Summary



 

2019 

Activity Name of Drain Work proposed Total 
cost 

Twp
 % 

 

Twp 
portion 

Owner
 % 

Owner 
portion 

Owner 
ave/parcel 
(per year) 

Road % Road 
portion 

           

Reactive 
maintenance 

Various Various $415,000 30* $124,500 30 $124,500 Various 40 $166,250 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Willow Run Clearing open channel $14,750 85 $12,500 - -  15 $2,250 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Tyler Dam Clearing open channel $5,000 35 $1,750 33 $1,700 <$0.50 32 $1,550 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Various Mowing program $15,000 43** $6,500 30 $4,500 Various 27 $4,000 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Ypsilanti Township #1 Cleaning/vactoring $20,000 80 $16,000 - -  20 $4,000 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Ypsilanti Township #8 Cleaning/vactoring $35,000 83 $29,000 - -  17 $6,000 

Initial inspection Budd Conditional assessment $9,500 35 $3,250 48 $4,500 <$25.00 17 $1,750 

Initial inspection Oakland Estates Sub Conditional assessment $22,000 35 $7,750 39 $8,500 <$40.00 26 $5,750 

Renewal Beyer Relief Catch structure 
rehabilitation 

$110,000 73 $80,250 - -  27 $29,750 

Renewal Recreation Park Sub Structures and sumps $97,500 35 $34,000 35 $34,000 <$50.00 26 $25,750 

Renewal Ypsilanti Township #1 
Consol. 

Tree removal, root 
intrusions 

$15,000 86 $13,000 - -  14 $2,000 

           

   $758,750  $328,500  $177,700   $249,050 

 
*Indicates an average apportionment of drains within Ypsilanti Township 
**Indicates an average apportionment of mowed drains within Ypsilanti Township 
 



® 0 3,2001,600
Feet

I²

!"̀$

!"̀$

?â I±

?â

?â I²

Laflin

G
orton

R
yan

Eaton

D
erbysh

ire

S
w

an
 C

reek &
 Plin

ey H
arris

N
orth

 B
ran

ch
 of B

ig S
w

an
 C

reek IC

Miller

W
illow Run

N
orth

B
ran

ch
o fB

ig
S w

a n
C

reek
IC

Y p s i la n t i T o w n s h ip # 0 7

U
p

p
er Paint C

reek

Ypsilanti 
Township #13

Extension

Ypsilanti Township
 #9 Ext

*

Recr
eation Park

Subdivisio
n

O
w

en

Budd

R
aw

son
ville

R
oad

Westlawn

Snidecar

*
Sand Creek

*
Silverleaf

Brock
Tile

*
Georgetown

Condominiums

*
G

reenfields

*
Aspen
Ridge

*
Greene Farms

*
Golf Estates

Beyer Relief

Shady
Knolls

*
Crystal 
Creek

*
Zeke Run Farm

Fairway 
Glens

*

Amberly
Grove

*

*
Lincoln 

Pines
Phase I

Gault
Village

Nancy Park #3

Je
ro

m
e 

S
tr

ee
t

*
Hickory Pointe

Carpenter Road

*
Bestech 
Center

Sm
okler-Textile

*
South Ford Lake

*
Branch of

Horner

*
Clubview
Estates

Deauville
Parish

W
hittaker-Textile

*
Whittaker

Village

Ford 
Lake

Heights

Ypsilanti 
Tow

nsh
ip #14

Whispering
Meadows

Streamwood 

*
Willow Pond

Pittsfield-C
lu

bview

*
Arbor Meadows

Ford Lake
V

illage #1

Ford 
Lake

Village 
#2

Ford Lake
Heights #5

Ford 
Lake

Heights
#2

Ford Lake
Heights #3Ford 

Lake
Heights #4

*
The Pines

Subdivision

Washtenaw-
Clubview #2

Washtenaw-
Clubview #1

*
Huron Dam
Subdivision

Ypsilanti 
Tow

nsh
ip

#06

*
Meadowview 
Subdivision

Ypsilanti Township
#07 Extension

Y p s i la n t i T o w n sh ip # 1 3

*
Creekside 

Village
West

*
Creekside

Village
East

Y p s i la n t i T o w n sh ip # 1 1

Ypsilanti 
Township

#01

Ypsilanti 
Township

#05

Ypsilanti 
Township

#03

*
Creekside

Village
South

Gault Farms
Subdivision

*
Partridge Creek

*
R

aym
ond

M
eadow

s
Site C

on
do

*
Oakland
Estates

Subdivision

*
Ashford Village

Subdivision

*
Pineview Golf

Course Estates

*
Oak Park & Washtenaw Heights

*
Trem

ont Park 
Su

bdivision
 # 1

Ypsilanti 
Township

#04

*
Pineview Golf Course

Estates #2

*
Huron 
Center 

Commercial
& Office

*
Pineview 

Golf Course
Estates North

*
Huron Center Commercial

& Industrial

Spruce Falls 
Subdivision
& Extension

O
w

en
 R

elief

West 
Branch
of Owen

Ypsilanti 
Township

#12
Ypsilanti Township
#01 Consolidated

Ypsilanti 
Township

#02

N
ich

olls

Ypsilanti 
Township

#02 Consolidated
Owen Outlet

Willow Run 
Extension

*
Upper

Paint

Creek

U
pp

er
 P

ai
n

t 
C

re
ek

Owen 
Extension

Packard Branch 
of Paint Creek

University
Palisades

Ypsilanti 
Township #9

Ypsila
nti 

Tow
nsh

ip #1
0

*
Lincoln 

Pines
Ph II

*
Huron 

Commons

Michigan Ave.
East Central

*
Arborwoods III

Streamwood
3 & 4

St
re

am
w

oo
d

#5

Streamwood
#8

St
re

am
wo

od
#6

St
re

am
w

oo
d

# 
7

*
Lakewood Farms

*
Arbor 

Ridge II

Sines Extension

Ypsilanti Township #08

Hamilton
Tile

Huron
River

Huron River

Ford Lake

Huron
River

E Clark Rd
Clark Rd

W
hi

tta
k e

rR
d

E Cross St

N Huron St

Textile Rd

W
hittaker R

d

E Ellsworth Rd

Textile Rd

Textile Rd

S H
ew

itt R
d

Le
fo

rg
e

R
d

S 
H

ur
on

 S
t

S G
rove St

E
Hur

on
R

ive
r D

r

W
ia

rd
 R

d

R
id

ge
 R

d

R
aw

sonville R
d

S 
H

am
ilt

on
 S

tS Congress St

W
Mich

igan Ave

Ston
y C

ree
k R

d

G
ol

fs
id

e
R

d

Packard Rd

Grove Rd

E Huron River Dr

N
 P

ro
sp

ec
t S

t

C
ar

pe
nt

er
 R

d
C

ar
pe

nt
er

 R
d

E Michigan Ave

S
H

ur
on

St

Holmes Rd

Tyler Rd

H
og

ba
ck

 R
d

C
ar

pe
nt

er
 R

d

Textile Rd
W

iard R
d

N
H

ew
it t

R
d

Holmes Rd

Su
pe

rio
r R

d

Ecorse Rd

Br
id

ge
 R

d

N
 F

or
d 

B
lv

d

St
on

y 
Cr

ee
k 

Rd

W Clark Rd

Spinnaker Way

N
 N

orm
al St

L a
ke

D
r

G
lenw

ood Ave

Pa
rk

 E
st

at
es

 D
r

Lakeview Ave

S 
H

ar
ris

 R
d

Pearl St

O
w

en
da

le
 S

t

Grant St

N
Brookston

Dr

NAshford Way

Holmes Rd

H
itchingham

 R
d

Emmet St

Hickory Pointe Blvd

Cottonwood Dr

Bu
nt

on
 R

d

Martz Rd

Hu
nt

C
lu

b
D

r

Colcheste r
Ln

M
un

ge
r R

d
M

un
ge

r R
d

Merritt Rd

S Huron River Dr

La goon Dr

H
om

es te ad

Rd

E Bemis Rd

Stamford Rd

C
ra

ne
R

d
Gregory St

El
m

 S
t

Stadium

V iew Dr

Wen
de

ll A
ve

Christina

Dr

D
or

se
t A

ve

Timothy Trl

Davis St

Stevens
Dr

Lakeshore
Blvd

ArborM
e ad ow

D
r

Ri
dg

ew
oo

d
D

r

M
cC

ar
tn

ey
Av

e

Kingwood St

First Ave

Railroad St

East w ood Ter

O
re

go
n 

St

N
 R

iv
er

 S
t

Airport Dr

Ed
is

on
 S

t

M
cAu ley

D
r

Green Rd

Valley Dr

Mott Rd

Pe
n

R
un

Ecorse Rd

H
ar

ry
 S

t

Woodruff Ln

H
ay

es
 S

t

RooseveltBlvd

Ai
rp

or
t I

nd
us

tri
al

D
r

Jones St

Tim

ber Ri d g
e

Dr

W
oodglen Ave

Towner St

Tyler Rd

Canyon Dr

B
oyne

Dr

W
oodview Rd

Bi
g

Pi
ne

D
r

R
aw

so
nv

ille
 R

d

Eu
ge

ne
 S

t

M
ap

le
vi

ew
Ln

Th
or

nh
ill 

Dr

D
ev

on
sh

ire
 S

t

M
aplelaw

n D
r

Russell St

Pi
tc

h
P i

ne

Ln W

Greene Farm Dr

E Clark Rd

S
M

ansfield
St

Be
rw

ic
k

D
r

O
na

nd
ag

a 
St

M
ichael Dr

Ce
nt

ur
y

Tr
l

Essex Dr

A
m

be
r

W

ay

R
ob

er
t

Cir

Swan LakeCir

S ilve rlea f
Dr

Fairhills D
r

King Richard

Collegewood St

Th
et

fo
rd

Ln

Cloverlane Dr

Sh
ar

e
Av

e

Joan Cir

N
as

h 
Av

e

Parkland Dr

Jac k
Pin e

D
r

H
aw

ks
 A

ve

Merritt Rd

Sunnydale Ave

Colony Way

Blue
Jay

D
r

Crys talC
ree k

D
r

Su
nr

ise
D

r

D
ev

on
St

Country View Dr

Huron River Dr

Ambassador
Dr

Da
wn

 A
ve

M
un

ge
r R

d

Po
pl

ar
 D

r

Bl
os

so

m
Hill Trl

D
es

ot
o 

Av
e

Oakridge Dr

Sherman St

As
pe

n 
W

ay

Coolidge Rd

D
es

ot
o 

Av
e

N
M

or
le

y
D

r

S C
lubview

 St

Briarbrook Dr

Creekway

Ba
yb

er
ry

St

Maple StFa
irv

iew
C

ir

G
eo

rg
in

a
D

r

State St

N
ash Ave

C
re

ek
be

nd
Dr

Roxbury Dr

Dover Dr

C
he

rry
w

oo
dD

r

N
C

lu
b v

ie
w

St

Ba
lla

rd
 S

t

N
at

al
ie

 D
r

A
m

rhein
D

r

N
Adam

s
St

H
ul

l S
t

Nottingham Dr

Sm
ith

 S
t

Warwick Dr

Bay Tree Dr

Kirk Profit D
r

Shellbark Dr
N

 R
iv

er
 S

t

W
el

lin
gt

on
 L

n

Valley V iew
Dr

Mollie St Dorothy St

St
ep

he
ns

Dr

Pebbles to n e
Dr

E

lm
w

oo
d

D
r

Indigo Ln

N
ew

M
ea

do
w

Dr

Sh effie ld
D

r

Long Meado
w

Ln

Chevrolet St

Jo
yc

e 
Vi

ew
 D

r

Tyler Rd

Par
kw

oo
d Av

e

Joe Hall Dr

Willo
wbr

idg
eRd

Creekside
C

ir

Foley Ave

Evelyn Ave

Ruth Ave Mary Catherine St

George Ave

Oak StOak St

N
M

an
sf

ie
ld

S t

Conway Ave

Elliott Dr

Ha
m

let
Dr

Eastlawn St

Service Dr

Hunter Ave

O
sb

an
d 

St

C
ha

rle
s 

St
Thoroughbred

W
ay

International Dr

En
ch

a n
te

d
D

r

Midvale St

Juneau Rd

Lathers S
t

Andrea St

Paint Creek Dr

Russell St

H
ogan D

r

G
le n dale Dr

I94
 S

er
vic

e R
d

Cole
m

an
St

Le
st

er
 A

ve

James L Hart Pkwy

H
ol

lis
 A

ve

P
i n

ev
i e

w
D

r

Burns St

Pam
el a Dr

N
 P

ar
k 

St

Pearl St

Redleaf Ln

Tyler Rd

Lo
ri 

St

O
akw

ood St

Center Valley Dr

Davis St

Second Ave

G
re

en
si

de
 S

t

G
at

te
gn

o 
St

Monroe St

G
arland

St

R
osew

ood Ave

Lexington Pkwy

Rice St

Em
erick St

O
aklaw

n Ave

E F ores
t A

ve

Central Blvd

Tyrone
St

Br
ow

ni
ng

 S
t

R
am

bli
ng

Rd

Lake Crest Dr

Pinew
ood St

C
ou

rtl
an

d 
St

M
un

ge
r R

d

Westmoorland St

E G
rand Blvd

R
ue

D
e au vi ll e

B lvd

H
ills

id
e 

D
r

Cole Blvd

Pe
rri

n 
St

Henley Dr

Applew
ood

Dr

Shetland
D

r

E 
G

ra
nd

 B
lv

d

Morris St

W Clark Rd

Lilly Dr

Buckley
Dr

Harm
on

St

B rooksid
e

St

Lakeridge Dr

Sherman St

Se
av

er
D

r

Chester Dr

Ruby St

Lilac
Ln

N
 G

ro
ve

 S
t

Diamond St

M
ea

do
w

la
rk

Ln

Olive St

C
he

rry

Bloss
om Dr

Woodward St

M
ap

le
 D

r

Cliffs Dr

H
untington Dr

W
oo

da
le

 A
ve

Panama Ave

M
cA

ule
y Dr

M
id

w
ay

 S
t

Sy
ca

m
or

e
Dr

Watling St

H
el

en
 S

t

Parkwood Ave

G
re

en
la

w
n 

St

O
akb rook Dr

Madison St

C
lo

ve
rla

w
n 

Av
e

Jefferson St

Village Ln

Fo
x 

Av
e

W
oodlaw

n Ave

Tu
ttl

e 
H

ill 
R

d

Beverly St

Elder St

Mac
ar

thu
r B

lvd

Lam
ay Ave

Concord

D
r

O
ak

da
le

D
r

Trillium Dr

Shirley Dr

St
on

eh
am

D
r

Rachel Dr

H
ick or y Hollow Dr

Skyway Dr

D
ak

ot
a 

Av
e

D
al

to
n 

Av
e

D
ayton D

r

Lev on a
S t

Merritt Rd

Wismer St

Jerom
e Ave

Ba
gl

ey
 A

ve

Fo
st

er
 A

ve

W
orden St

Id
e 

Av
e

Fa
irf

ie
ld

 S
t

Airport Service Rd

Whittier Rd

Tu
ttl

e 
H

ill 
R

d

Woburn Dr

G
au

l t
D

r

Mayhew St

Allen Ave

N
or

ris
 S

t

Auburndale Ave

Merritt Rd

Maplewood Ave

Parkwood Ave

Hawthorne Ave

D
w

ig
ht

 S
t

St
an

le
y 

St

H
em

ph
ill 

St

Tw
in

 T
ow

er
s 

St

Bradley Ave

H
i ll c

re
st

Bl
vd

C
am

pb
el

lA
ve

Lake vi ew Dr

S
As hfo rd

Wa y

D
ea

ke
 A

ve

Blossom Ave

Oakhurst Dr

O
ut

er
 L

n

C
rane R

d

Sw
ee

t R
d

W
e s

tv
ie

w
D

r

Draper Ave

C
ra

ne
R

d

O
ak

 D
r

To
rre

y 
Av

e

K a
ns

as
Av

e

C
al

de
r S

t

C
ar

y 
D

r

Se
m

in
ol

e 
R

d

M
cG

re
go

r R
d

H
ea rths i d e Dr

Merritt Rd

Bo
rg

st
ro

m
St

Harvest Ln

Ellis Rd

Rue
W

ille
tte

Bl
vd

Merrill St

Be
ec

h 
D

r

E Morgan Rd

M
ai

n 
Av

e

Hickory Ct

Wat e
rs

id
e

Xi
ng

Es
ta

te
s 

D
r

O
hi

o 
St

Crestwood Ave

NutmegDr

W
ia

rd
 R

d

C
ar

lto
n 

D
r

Harding Ave

CommonwealthAve

Carlton Dr

Oswe
go

St

Wiard Blvd

Orchard Ln

Ardis D
r

William Ave

McKinley Ave

Ly
nn

e
Av

e

Maxine Comm

on

El
lis

 R
d

W
oo dstream Dr

C
ry

st
al

 D
r

Suns
et

Tr
l

R
an

do
lp

h 
C

t

Crane Ct

G
ra

nt
Dr

C
en

te
nn

ia
l A

ve

D
eer C

reek D
r

D
ay

to
na

Av
e G

rayf i e ld Cir

Kensington Dr

Wildwood St

W
h

istlin
g Way

McGregor Rd

Snow Rd

Spencer Ln

Th
or

no
aks

Dr

D
ea

n 
D

r

M
cK

ea
n 

R
d

Sh
a d

y
Kn

ol
lL

n

Woodland Ct

H
itchingham

 R
d

Swallow Ln

W
atson St

G
lencoe

Hills Dr

Bunton R
d

M
cKean R

d

Morgan Rd

Merritt Rd

BrynM
awrLn

Bry n

M
aw

r

Ln

RobinhoodBlvd

Robinhood Blvd

Ainsw
o r th C ir

Bynan D
r

Indian Hills DrI ndian Hil ls Dr

1:19,200

Legend
Lakes

County Drain Systems

Waters of the State

Map Published On :

Ypsilanti Township
County Drain

Map

Date: 12/8/2017

Evan N. Pratt P.E.
Washtenaw County
Water Resources
Commissioner

705 N. Zeeb Rd.
Ann Arbor, MI 48107

Ph: 734-222-6860
Fax: 734-222-6803

www.washtenaw.org/drains



Derbyshire
$2,000

Ypsilanti
Township #14
$1,250

The Pines
Sub
$5,250

Budd
$3,250

Miller
$2,250

Ypsilanti Twp #11
$6,000

Sines Ext.
$1,250

Ypsilanti Twp #7
Ext.

$5,500

Eaton
$1,250

Tyler Dam
$1,750

Brock
$1,250

N. Br. Big
Swan Creek IC
$1,250

Wash-Clubview #2
$12,250

Oakland
Estates Sub

$7,750

Ypsilanti Township
#1 Consol.
$13,000

Ypsilanti Twp #10
$12,500

Gorton
$15,000

Ypsilanti
Township #1
$16,000

Willow Run
$12,500

Ypsilanti
Township #8

$29,000

Ypsilanti Twp #13
Ext.
$27,250

Wash-Clubview #1
$19,250

Recreation
Park Sub
$34,000

Ypsilanti Twp #13
$76,500

Smokler-Textile
$325,000

North Ford
Lake Consol.
$195,000

Beyer Relief
$80,250

12

12
Packard Rd

W
Mich

igan Ave

W
hi

tta
ke

r R
d

Textile Rd

Bu
nt

on
 R

d

Martz Rd

E Forest Ave

S H
ew

itt R
d

N
H

ew
itt

R
d

Airport Dr

R
id

ge
 R

d

Washtenaw Ave

St
on

y 
C

re
ek

 R
d

Tyler Rd

Tu
ttl

e 
H

ill
 R

d

Ecorse Rd

R
aw

sonville R
d

E Michigan Ave

S H
arris R

d

Holmes Rd

Grove Rd

E Clark Rd

S Huron River Dr

S
H

ur
on

S
t

E Ellsworth Rd

W
iard R

d

E Cross St

Merritt Rd

M
cK

ea
n 

R
d

S 
Fo

rd
 B

lv
d

M
cG

re
go

r R
d

Ellis Rd

Br
id

ge
 R

d

N
 F

or
d 

B
lv

d

94

Total Proposed 
Spending Per Drain

Ypsilanti Township
Asset Management Plan 

Washtenaw County
Reference Map

***Not to Scale***

0 0.5 1

Miles

Drain Projects
Cost

Low
Moderate
Medium
Highest

Published 1/26/2019

Geographic 
Information 

System



705,606$        Four Year Average Spending (2015-2018)

322,744$        Four Year Average Spending Ypsilanti Township Only

759,250$        Proposed Spending 2019

328,500$        Proposed Spending 2019 Ypsilanti Township Only

178,000$        Proposed Spending 2019 Ypsilanti Township Property Owners

42,999,506$   Total Replacement Value, refer to page 6

0.75% Four Year Average Annual Ypsi Twp Spending to Total Replacement

15.00$             

Average Special Assessment Per Parcel  Per Drain 

(Note: some parcels have more than one drain special assessment per year)

Beyer Relief, $86,814 , 17%

North Branch of Big Swan Creek IC, $53,618 , 11%

North Ford Lake Consolidated, $48,982 , 10%

Upper Paint Creek, $33,084 , 7%

Partridge Creek, $19,155 , 4%

Ypsilanti Township #07, $14,738 , 3%

Ypsilanti Township #04, $12,421 , 2%

Smokler-Textile, $11,819 , 2%

Recreation Park Subdivision, $11,123 , 2%

Huron Center Commercial and Office, $10,283 , 2%

West Branch of Paint Creek, $8,230 , 2%

Ypsilanti Township #01 Consolidated, $8,137 , 2%

Ypsilanti Township #13, $7,601 , 1%

Spruce Falls Subdivision and Extension, $7,387 , 1%

Sines, $6,805 , 1%

Streamwood #7, $6,176 , 1%

Tremont Park Subdivision, $6,150 , 1%

Whittaker-Textile, $6,107 , 1%

Willow Run Extension #1, $5,891 , 1%

Swan Creek and Pliney Harris, $5,836 , 1%

Ypsilanti Township #03, $5,243 , 1%

Streamwood #3 and #4, $5,195 , 1%

Streamwood Subdivision, $5,060 , 1%

72 Others (Less than $5000 Ave/Year), $121,099 , 24%

YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP--DRAIN SPENDING FOUR YEAR AVERAGE
(2015-2018)





































AUTHORITY FAQ  
1/18/2019 

What is an Authority? 

The Authority is a legally recognized entity, formed by agreement of two or more municipalities to 
manage and operate solid waste management programs. The enabling legislation was created long ago 
for trash collection and disposal. The most common and current Authority purposes focus on recycling 
and landfill diversion. The proposed Washtenaw Regional Resource Management Authority (WRRMA) 
plans to follow that trend by focusing on landfill diversion and moving towards zero waste.   

Who has been involved in the process? 

Representatives from Ann Arbor Township, the City of Ann Arbor, the City of Dexter, Pittsfield Charter 
Township, the City of Saline, the Township of Scio, the City of Ypsilanti, and the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti have been engaged in drafting the Articles of Incorporation. 

How did this process start? 

The process grew out of regional stakeholder meetings where members expressed desire for greater 
regional recycling collaboration. Representatives from eight communities (above) have met monthly 
from May-November to discuss the goals, objectives, and benefits of forming an Authority. 

What is the vision for the Authority?  
The Authority’s members create the vision. The stakeholders have expressed a strong desire to increase 
the quantity and quality of the recycling stream first, with a desire to move closer to zero waste over the 
long-term.   

First steps will include tracking materials to create a baseline for comparison, inserting language into 
contracts to allow for collective contracting (discussed below), and improving the quality and quantity of 
recycling streams through education and outreach. There is consensus among members to create 
additional drop-off stations where members could bring recycling, and potentially household hazardous 
waste, tires, electronics, etc.  After recycling streams have been improved, the Authority hopes to 
attract a private partnership for the development and operation of a MRF (Materials Recovery Facility).  

What are the benefits of an Authority? 

Authorities may take advantage of economies of scale to improve and increase service levels, lower 
costs, or both. There are more than a dozen such authorities in Michigan, including WWRA (Western 
Washtenaw Recycling Authority), MMWA (Mid-Michigan Waste Authority), SOCRRA (South Oakland 
County Resource Recovery Authority), and RRRASOC (Resource Recovery and Recycling Authority of 
Southwest Oakland County). An authority can stretch dollars by eliminating duplication of educational 
efforts while providing a consistent message to authority residents. By collaborating and eventually 
aggregating the recycling streams of Authority members, it sends a signal to private industry that the 
region is serious about waste diversion. In formation meetings, stakeholders agreed to start with metrics 
and recycling education, then move towards expanding locations for collection and processing 
(attracting private industry for a MRF).  

Why is solid waste or materials management included in the purview of the Authority? 

The Authority members have chosen to have the ability to manage multiple materials in order to 
decrease the amount being landfilled and take advantage of potential costs savings. 

Solid waste and materials management are broad terms. If the Authority is going to increase diversion 
through recycling from single-family residential homes, removing the recycling from the trash is a logical 



AUTHORITY FAQ  
1/18/2019 

starting place. In order to create quality metrics, the Authority should have the ability to manage all 
aspects of the waste stream. Additionally, by collaboratively contracting trash hauling, Authority 
members can opt-in to a collective bid process. By collectively bidding, there are opportunities for cost 
savings. By enabling optimized routes and increasing purchase power, authorities can typically achieve 
decreased carbon emissions and reduced hauling costs. 

How does the collaborative contracting process work?   
Please see the attached contracting sheet for a flow chart explaining the process. 

What does it take to withdraw or leave the Authority? 

The withdrawing member must meet certain requirements stipulated by the Act. An Authority member 
will need to adopt and file a resolution from their board with certain language and within specified 
timeframes. Members cannot leave within 60 days of the resolution being passed or within 1 year of the 
end date on the most recently signed contract. For example, if the Authority’s most recent contract lasts 
5 years, a member could leave between years 0-4. Members who withdraw could become a customer of 
the authority (see “Who can be a Member” below).  

What is the financial commitment?  

Members’ financial commitment to the Authority are governed by its Articles of Incorporation.  In short, 
however, they may incur liability to the Authority by contracting with it.  They may also incur liability 
based on activities the Authority undertakes while they’re a member, many of which are activities 
members are already undertaking on their own (e.g., education, collecting metrics, and contracting for 
hauling waste).  

What support is Washtenaw County providing?  

Washtenaw County has provided staff support and funding through a SEMCOG grant to facilitate the 
authority formation process. During the first year, stakeholders have expressed a strong desire to work 
on education to increase the quality and quantity of the recycling streams, as well as develop metrics for 
tracking material volumes. During the first year, small contributions ($5,000 per community for 2019) 
will be pooled to create educational materials and create outreach activities. The Washtenaw County 
Board of Public Works has approved a match of the initial contribution and anticipates supporting future 
activities commensurate with anticipated impact. Washtenaw County has expressed a willingness to 
help fund capital improvements and starter capital in the near-term, but not operational capital. 

How will municipalities pay for the services of an Authority?  
The Authority is being created under PA 179. Unlike other acts that can form an authority, PA 179 has no 
taxing authority. It will be funded by revenues from contracts it enters, funds provided by its members, 
and start-up support from the County. Any costs that Authority Members vote on and approve will be 
under the control of each individual member for how to pay their share of expenditures.  

How do the finances work? 

In the initial year, each member will contribute $5,000, which will support administration and initial 
projects. The County will match the initial contribution up to $5,000 for each member. Contributions in 
future years will be determined through the annual budget and reflect the scope of the Authority’s 
undertakings. The Authority will create a budget each October send it to their respective governing 
bodies for objections. Objections received by Dec 1st will be addressed in the Authority’s December 



AUTHORITY FAQ  
1/18/2019 

meeting, prior to approval of the budget. A brief annual report will accompany the proposed budget in 
October.   

Single expenditures greater than $5,000 for any member require approval of the respective member’s 
governing body.  

What does it take to amend the articles?  

It will take approval from every Authority board member and their respective board or council to amend 
the articles.  

How does the voting structure work? 

Each member gets one vote. A simple majority may take routine actions.  However, an at least 2/3rds 

(rounded up if 2/3rds isn’t met) vote is required for monetary expenditures beyond routine operating 
costs.   

Who can be a member of the Authority?  

Municipalities (cities, villages, and townships) can choose to be initial Constituent Members of the 
Authority. After the Authority is established, additional municipalities can request to become a member, 
but the Authority will need to decide whether or not to accept any new members. Adding a member 
requires amending the articles, which will require approval from every Authority member’s respective 
legislative body. New members will also have to pay for their share of equity to “catch up.” In the 
beginning, these costs will be minimal, if existent. Long term, these costs become prohibitively 
expensive, and new members are more likely to be “customers” of the Authority, for which they pay a 
premium relative to members of the Authority.  

The law stipulates that municipalities can be members. Washtenaw County and universities are not 
allowed to be members of the authority. They may be customers of the Authority, contract with the 
Authority, and contribute to/benefit from the activities of the Authority, but they are not allowed to be 
a member and therefore have no voting power.  

How does WWRA factor into this effort? 

Authority members have expressed a desire to work collaboratively with WWRA after forming.  

 



Collaborative Contracting Process (For Example Purposes) 
 For WRRMA 

Authority Members contract with Authority
Members contract with Authority, including any nuances agreed upon in service 

agreements.

Hauler determination. Authority contracts with hauler 

Members who opted in agree upon a haulers to contract with.

Authority Members opt in or opt out 
of "the BOX"

Members determine if they want to collaboratively bid 
once contracts align. Members who opt out neither 

gain nor lose any rights/powers of membership.

Service Agreement

Members seeking to 

collaboratively bid agree on what 
level of service becomes standard 

for their contracts.

Contract Language

Authority members coordinate expirations and insert language which allows them to pull 
recycling from the contract/dictate where recycling goes

Authority is formed
The group decides upon common purposes and goals, Articles of Incorporation, which leads 

to Authority Formation



 

REVIEW AGENDA 
 

A. SUPERVISOR STUMBO WILL REVIEW BOARD 
MEETING AGENDA 



 

OTHER DISCUSSION 
 

A. BOARD MEMBERS HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO 
DISCUSS ANY OTHER PERTINENT ISSUES 



   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
  SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE  TREASURER LARRY DOE 
TRUSTEES: STAN ELDRIDGE  HEATHER JARRELL ROE  MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS  

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 
 

                                 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
       TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2019 

    7:00 P.M. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
A. MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 15, 2019 WORK SESSION AND JANUARY 30, 2019 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR FEBRUARY 5, 2019 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,234,876.99 
 

5. ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
1. REQUEST OF TRUSTEE MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS TO RESCIND LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT APPROVAL OF A SMALL WINEMAKERS LICENSE AND AN ON 
PREMISE TASTING PERMIT FOR PATRICK ECKLIN AND JEFFREY FRASURE TO BE 
LOCATED AT 1497 ECORSE RD. 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. REQUEST TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDER WITH MOLNAR ROOFING FOR THE CIVIC 

CENTER ROOF IN THE AMOUNT OF $48,636.50 TO BE BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#101-970-000-975-141 

 
2. 1ST READING OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2019-484, AN ORDINANCE PROHIBITING 

RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS WITHIN YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP AS 
PROVIDED BY THE RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA BALLOT INITIATIVE 1 OF 2018  

 
3. REQUEST APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT WITH WASHTENAW COUNTY FOR 

SUBAWARD OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FOR FUNDING FOR 
IMPROVEMENTS TO FOLEY AVE. 

 
4. REQUEST TO APPROVE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE 

BETWEEN YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP, YPSILANTI COMMUNITY UTILITY AUTHORITY, 
TRENCHLESS SOLUTIONS INC. AND JA UTILITIES, LLC 
 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 2  February 5, 2019 
  

   
    
   
 
 
 
 
  

5. REQUEST TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH BARR 
ENGINEERING TO ASSIST HYDRO OPERATIONS IN COMPLETING THE FIVE YEAR 
EMERGENCY ACTION PLAN FUNCTIONAL EXERCISE AND REPORT AS REQUIRED 
BY THE FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION (FERC) IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $26,000.00  BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #252-252-000-801-000 

 
6. REQUEST APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT WITH WASHTENAW COUNTY FOR 

SERVICES IN RELATION TO REIMAGINE WASHTENAW FOR YEARS 2019 AND 2020 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $3,000.00 PER YEAR BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-956-000-
801-000 

 
7. REQUEST TO APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH ISSUE MEDIA GROUP FOR ON THE 

GROUND PROGRAM 2019 IN THE AMOUNT OF $12,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM 
#101-956-000-801-000 

 
8. REQUEST TO APPROVE RETAINER AGREEMENT WITH GOVERNMENTAL 

CONSULTANT SERVICES FOR YEARS 2019, 2020, AND 2021 BUDGETED IN LINE 
ITEM #101-101-000-801-000 
  

9. REQUEST TO ACCEPT A DONATION OF A BIKE STAND FROM FRIENDS OF THE 
BORDER TO BORDER TRAIL TO BE LOCATED AT LOONFEATHER PARK 

 
10. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK LEGAL 

ACTION IF NECESSARY TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED 
AT 8734 LILLY DR. IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-
950-000-801-023 
 

11. 2019 CONTRACTS AND RENEWALS 
 

12. BUDGET AMENDMENT #2 
 

 
        

OTHER BUSINESS  
    

  
  
 
 
 

 
 



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF WORK SESSION  

JANUARY 15, 2019 
 

Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 5:03 p.m. in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. 
 

Members Present:  Supervisor: Brenda L. Stumbo, Treasurer Larry Doe,  

    Trustees: Stan Eldridge, Heather Jarrell Roe and  
                                              Monica Ross-Williams     
                                         

Members Absent:        Trustee Jimmy Wilson, Jr. arrived at 5:05 p.m. 

Clerk Lovejoy Roe arrived at 5:18 p.m. 
  

Legal Counsel:   Wm. Douglas Winters  
 
 

1. TOWNSHIP PARKS AND RECREATION MASTER PLAN 
PRESENTATION…………………………….. MEGAN MASSON-MINOCK 
AND CHRIS NORDSTROM 

 
Megan Masson-Minock, introduced herself and Chris Nordstrom, from Carlisle 
Wortman. She stated they would go over the Public Hearing presentation for the 
Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan, part of Ypsilanti Township 2040, a 
community based vision and updating the policies to implement that vision. She 
explained one of the purposes for updating the Master Plan was to qualify for 
grants on a state and federal level, which had deadlines for applying.  
 
Chris Nordstrom, Landscape Architect from Carlisle Wortman stated he had been 
working on this plan with a steering committee made up mainly of Park 
Commission members and staff. He stated there were two main reasons for 
updating the Master Plan, first it would dictate how Parks and Recreation operated 
for the next five years and secondly would qualify for funding through the Michigan 
Department of Natural Resources. He explained there were three primary grant 
opportunities, the first being the Michigan Department of Natural Resources Trust 
Fund, which could get up to $300,000.00 with a 25% match and would be unlimited 
if used for acquisition purposes. He said the second was Michigan Recreation 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF JANUARY 15, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 2 
 
Passport which was funded through the State of Michigan Driver License renewal 
program for $150,000.00 with a 25% match, as well. He continued the third was 
the Land and Water Conservation Fund, a federal fund which status of funding 
questionable for this year, for $300,000.00 with a 50% match required.  
 
Chris Nordstrom stated work on this had begun in May of 2018 and reviewed 
meetings that had led to this draft for the Master Plan. He said communities 
typically adopted the plan after a public hearing, which was required by law. He 
stated it would have to be adopted and uploaded to the MDR website by Feb. 1 in 
order to be eligible for funding on April 1.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo asked if we knew which plan we wanted to apply for funding 
and Mr. Nordstrom stated we did not know at this time, however he 
recommended the process be started today if any funding was going to be 
considered.  
 
Trustee Ross-Williams asked for any insight he might have from communities that 
had won grant funding.  
 
Mr. Nordstrom briefly reviewed some projects that had received DNR funding. He 
stated there were certain components that you had no control over, such as 
median income, but they liked to see connectivity and improving connectivity went 
even farther in gaining favor. He said regional and statewide trails were getting the 
highest score and any project that was part of the Iron Belt Trail got funded. 
 
Mr. Nordstrom reviewed statistics from Survey Monkey which reflected that 
people were very happy with our parks in the Township, for the most part and they 
served a vital purpose for our community. Mr. Nordstrom stated he agreed with 
the survey and stated the Cobalt Survey also presented a picture of around 70% 
favorability. He reported the Survey Monkey was not a statistically valid survey 
whereas the Cobalt Survey was. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe asked which survey had been used for the presentation. Mr. 
Nordstrom briefly explained the numbers primarily came from the Survey Monkey 
and stated there were 113 people that had responded, which was an average 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF JANUARY 15, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 3 
 
response from communities our size and since it has been combined with Cobalt 
Survey, the Open House and the Design Workshop he felt confident the response 
was a good representation. He explained the previous survey that had gone out 
with the tax bill had around 500 respondents and the difference between the two 
was it included the overall Master Plan rather than just Parks and Recreation. 
 
Discussion followed on how well people actually knew where all the parks were 
and their condition.  
 
Trustee Ross-Williams asked which park was in a certain slide. Chris Nordstrom 
identified it as Pine Park and in his opinion there was no reason to have playground 
equipment there, but felt something more creative, such as some type of storm 
water retention or gazebo with a community garden would make it stand out a 
little more. He stated it would be best to work with neighboring residents to find 
out better solutions for the smaller parks. 
 
Chris Nordstrom stated maintaining existing parks was a recurrent theme at all the 
meetings, with protecting natural resources and having access to trails were close 
behind. He felt the primary focus for the next five years should be maintaining and 
upgrading the existing equipment and restrooms. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams asked what other communities practices were regarding 
keeping restrooms open without vandalism issues. Mr. Nordstrom agreed it was a 
challenge and stated having eyes on the park was one deterrent but there was no 
good answer when there was a limited staff. Discussion was had regarding port-a-
johns and Mr. Nordstrom agreed that might be a possible solution. He suggested 
the smaller neighborhood parks might not necessarily need restrooms, but it was 
important for the larger community parks to have something more permanent. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe voiced her struggle with making decisions based on a few 
people possibly vandalizing and prohibiting the rest of the peoples access to 
restroom facilities. Mr. Nordstrom stated, he was playing devil’s advocate by 
stating that those one or two people cost a lot of money.  
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF JANUARY 15, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 4 
 
Mr. Nordstrom reported there was little interest in programming and the problem 
seemed to be the hours that programming was available. He said the senior 
population was served quite well. He suggested the Park Commission could do 
more marketing by listening to people’s interests and making hours more 
conducive would get others involved. Supervisor Stumbo asked if the size of the 
Community Center was a problem.  Mr. Nordstrom reported there was concern 
regarding the Community Center as it is right now, as it was out dated and did not 
accommodate some of the things people would like to see. He reported there was 
a push for a new center. He reported the location of the current center limited 
residents south of Ford Lake, there was no pool, no large gym and did not have the 
type of meeting rooms that people wanted. He suggested partnership with other 
recreation providers could go a long way and reported one in Southgate that had 
partnered with YMCA which was spectacular. 
 
Chris Nordstrom reported he was currently working on a non-motorized plan with 
much more detail than possible in this Recreation Plan that would come back to be 
Board at a later date.   He reported the results of the survey showed a community 
that was very active and liked to walk, run, hike and bike and 82% of those that 
responded wanted trails to expand. He stated he was surprised since the Township 
is right on the Huron River, that there was no response regarding kayaking or 
canoeing but he couldn’t tell from the data if they didn’t like it or the fact there 
was no access.  
 
Chris Nordstrom addressed the big ticket items. He reported people liked dog parks 
and even though the numbers were not overwhelming in the survey, people had 
talked about it at every meeting. He said the logical location would be at a 
community park rather than a neighborhood park because of parking. He said the 
next subject was a Splash Pad, which would be a big expense, $200,000.00 
minimum with ongoing expenses. Mr. Nordstrom said the next big ticket item was 
a new community center and gym. He reported 93% of those surveyed said they 
would support a millage for the acquisition, development and maintenance of 
Ypsilanti Township Parks. He stated over the next five years the Board and Park 
Commission may want to consider if a millage is a way to guarantee you have a 
continued level of financial support for your parks for maintenance, sufficient 
staffing and development of equipment as needed. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF JANUARY 15, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 5 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe asked if the millage information came from both surveys. Mr. 
Nordstrom stated it came from the Survey Monkey. She asked now many people 
were involved in the Cobalt Survey and Megan Masson-Minnock responded there 
were 520 respondents. 
 
Trustee Ross Williams asked if it would be a good idea to partner with Washtenaw 
County in regard to a dog park. Mr. Nordstrom stated it would always be best to 
partner with Washtenaw County Parks because the level of funding would be far 
better than any individual community could obtain on their own, but there was 
always a risk that they might have too many projects. He stated it would be critical 
to have that partnership when applying for the grant. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams asked if Mr. Nordstrom had any history to draw from 
regarding smaller splash pads being able to service the needs of the community. 
Mr. Nordstrom stated he felt if a smaller splash pad was installed it would be 
overwhelmed and referred to Brownstown had put one in and had to resort to a 
residents only policy, as well as charging for its use because the lines were so long. 
He said other communities had put in a fountain type that doubled as a visual joy 
as well as something for children to play in on a hot summer day. He felt that a 
single smaller pad would not be able to serve the community since there was so 
much pent up demand, but maybe a couple, possibly one at LoonFeather and one 
at Ford Heritage in order to serve the community that was divided by Ford Lake. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe asked if the survey had included any questions regarding funding 
for a splash pad and Mr. Nordstrom answered that had not been included in the 
survey. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo asked if the survey was taken before new millages were voted 
in, and the timeframe was from between September to October, a little before the 
new millages were implemented. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated it was important to include things we would like to have 
funding for in the Master Plan.  Supervisor Stumbo listed the priorities for the 
Master Plan as being maintenance, paths and trails, dog park and splashpad. She 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF JANUARY 15, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 6 
 
asked if she was correct in the fact that trails and paths were a priority and Mr. 
Nordstrom agreed.   
 
Supervisor Stumbo reported 5 new playscapes had been updated in 2018. 
 
Chris Nordstrom stated there was a lot to consider regarding maintenance of trails 
and used the example of the North Bay Park & Boardwalk, which was a wonderful 
trail but was in needed work to keep up to safe levels. He stated the Board would 
need to work actively with the Park Commission regarding maintenance, including 
making a decision of what materials to use for preventative maintenance. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo asked if preservation of farmland for educational purposes 
could be included in the plan.  Discussion followed regarding a joint effort with the 
County or a non-profit for the purpose of land conservancy for such an endeavor 
rather than actually acquiring additional farmland for the purpose of a park. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams commented the previous Park Commission had prioritized 
the needs in the last plan and she suggested updating that information to show 
what had been accomplished, what still needed to be done and use this to plan for 
the future. 
 
Mr. Nordstrom explained he had used the terms long-term, mid-term and short- 
term and had tried to incorporate the findings from the previous plan. He stated 
there were a lot of options available to apply for funding.   
 
Mr. Nordstrom stated the most controversial proposal in the plan was for 
Sugarbrook Park. He stated several people were concerned about crime in that 
area and the primary reason was because of the configuration of the park. He 
discussed some of the suggested remedies, settling on installation of security 
cameras and lighting. Discussion followed on a plan to divest part of the park and 
extend Heather Ridge and make that area available for single housing and then 
move the existing equipment and upgrade the existing basketball court. More 
discussion followed for a park on the Kettering school property which was currently 
under the jurisdiction of Ypsilanti Schools, but then the question follows on what to 
do with Sugarbrook Park, which it was agreed would be a neighborhood 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF JANUARY 15, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 7 
 
consideration. Mr. Nordstrom stated his main reason for the residential addition 
was because of the crime, not necessarily to generate income. Supervisor Stumbo 
voiced her opposition. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe asked if there was a shortage of ball fields and if that field could 
be updated for use by the Little League. Mr. Nordstrom stated he wasn’t sure if the 
field was regulation and parking would then be an issue. She suggested adding play 
structures for different age groups. She said the Township should have 
neighborhood driven remedies for each of the parks.  
 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated if Heather Ridge was extended into Sugarbook Park, 
she saw that as having more eyes on the park which would be solution to some of 
the safety concerns. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated a lot of small changes needed to be made to the 
Administrative Structure. Mr. Nordstrom stated he had already made those 
changes. Supervisor Stumbo pointed out some changes that needed to be made 
regarding Budget and Funding.  
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe asked if it were possible to approve the Resolution with the 
changes as outlined tonight and allow additional items to be included that are 
received by the deadline. Mr. Nordstrom said if he had the changes by the Special 
Board Meeting on January 29th he could add them to the Resolution. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe commented that she would like to see the parks opened all year 
long to promote wellness.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated she would like to have another meeting.  Mr. Nordstrom 
stated it would be helpful if comments could be sent to him so he could outline the 
changes by January 29th.  
 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated she would be the one to accept the comments and 
suggested it was important to get this done quickly in order to be able to apply for 
funding by February 1. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF JANUARY 15, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 8 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe asked for clarification on the process of sending comments. 
 
Mr. Nordstrom asked for comments to be sent to himself, Megan or Trustee Ross-
Williams by Jan. 21. and then approval could be done at the Special Meeting on 
Jan. 29. 
 
Trustee Eldridge stated if this was a fluid document, that once approved changes 
could still be made, that instead of making last minute changes we could certainly 
do that after Feb. 1.  
 
Mr. Nordstrom stated he was willing to make the changes so you don’t have to do 
an addendum later and frankly, he wanted to make sure everyone has read and 
agreed with the changes.  
 
Megan Masson-Minock stated that it would be best to email any changes to Chris, 
and if conflicting, he would email the Board and when everything was agreed, the 
update could be done by Friday, January 18. She stated that this would give 
everyone a chance to review before the Special Meeting on Jan. 29. 
 

 
2. COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REVIEW…………………………..   

…………………………………………….………...TRUSTEE ROSS-WILLIAMS 

 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated there had been a lot of questions regarding 
compensation stipends so she researched other communities and MTA (Michigan 
Township Association) which all agreed the best practice was to have a 
Compensation Committee. She explained a compensation committee was basically 
made up of a quorum of residents, appointed by the Board to do due diligence to 
see if any salaries needed to be increased of if the salaries or stipends are at par.  
She provided examples of times different communities met. She state she it was 
not necessarily a paid position and didn’t mean the Board had to adopt their 
determinations. She stated their meetings could be accessed by FOIA. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe asked if some committees could have board members.  Trustee 
Ross-Williams said they could, as long as they weren’t the majority. Trustee Jarrell 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF JANUARY 15, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 9 
 
Roe then asked what would happen, since they met so infrequently, when 
someone who was appointed moved. Trustee Ross-Williams said the Board could 
define their own policy and expand the scope to reviewing salaries across the 
board. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said a tool was on MTA website to be able to compare salaries. 
 
Arloa Kaiser asked if this wasn’t part of the responsibility of the Board we elected. 
 
Trustee Eldridge thanked Trustee Ross-Williams for her work. He stated however 
this was duplicating a service the Board already did and since nothing has been 
improper and this was working, he questioned the need for such a committee. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated these were uncomfortable discussions for the Board 
and this committee did not have to be paid and their only responsibility was to only 
recommend, after doing research to confirm or deny if any increases are 
warranted.  
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe again stated this data could be accessed after setting the 
perimeters again according to taxable value or population. 
 
Trustee Wilson said he was okay with the committee or role of past practice, 
whichever the Board chose. 
 
Arloa Kaiser stated the Board was elected by the people, for the people they 
should have known when elected there was a lot of time involved and they would 
have to deal with the good, the bad and the ugly and she felt this Board should be 
capable to do so. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated they had always just gone with the 3% dictated by the 
Union increase so she felt Trustee Ross-Williams had a good idea to look at the 
data.  
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF JANUARY 15, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 10 
 

3. AGENDA REVIEW…………………………………….SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 
No Discussion 
 

4. OTHER DISCUSSION………………….……………………BOARD 
MEMBERS 

 
No Discussion 
 
The Work Session adjourned 6:53 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 30, 2019 SPECIAL MEETING 

 
Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 3:30 p.m. in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township.  

Members Present:  Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Lovejoy Roe, 

                                         Treasurer Doe, Trustees: Stan Eldridge,                                                                         

Members Absent:  Trustees Jimmie Wilson, Jr., Heather Jarrell Roe and Monica 

Ross-Williams                    

Legal Counsel:   Wm. Douglas Winters 

 

1. RESOLUTION 2019-02, Adoption of the 2019-2023 Ypsilanti 
Charter Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
approve Resolution 2019-02, Adoption of the 2019-2023 Ypsilanti Charter 
Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan.  
 
The Motion Carried Unanimously. 
 

2. Request To Approve the January 15, 2019 Regular Meeting 
Minutes 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to 
Approve the January 15, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo requested the minutes be typed verbatim for New Business 
Item #1.  She also said that Treasurer Doe had requested the minutes be typed 
verbatim for this item.  Clerk Lovejoy Roe said he had not made this request to her.  
Treasurer Doe said he had requested Deputy Clerk, Lisa Stanfield to have this 
section typed verbatim.  Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated the recordings are now available 
where you can hear the meetings without the need to type them verbatim. 
  
The Motion Carried Unanimously.  
 

3. Request To Accept the Resignation of Stuart M. Collis from the 
Ypsilanti Township Park Commission effective January 22, 2019 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe and supported by Trustee Eldridge to 
Accept the Resignation of Stuart M. Collis from the Ypsilanti Township Park 
Commission effective January 22, 2019. 
 
The Motion Carried Unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at approximately 3:34 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 











 

ATTORNEY REPORT 

 
GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
 



 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

 



 January 30, 2019 

 
Memorandum 
 
Purpose: 
 
The purpose of this memorandum is to bring forward to the Ypsilanti Township Board of 
Trustees the following Motion To Rescind Language to the January 15, 2019, General Meeting 
under Item #1 - New Business as Follows: 
 
“REQUEST FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT APPROVAL OF A SMALL WINEMAKERS 
LICENSE AND AN ON PREMISE TASTING PERMIT FOR PATRICK ECKLIN AND 
JEFFREY FRASURE TO BE LOCATED AT 1497 ECORSE RD.” 
 
Per Robert's Rules of Order pp. 305 - 307, reads as follows: 
 

“​By means of the motions to Rescind and to Amend Something Previously 
Adopted—which are two forms of one incidental main motion governed by identical 
rules—the assembly can change an action previously taken or ordered. Rescind—also 
known as Repeal or Annul—is the motion by which a previous action or order can be 
canceled or countermanded. The effect of Rescind is to strike out an entire main motion, 
resolution, order, or rule that has been adopted at some previous time. Amend 
Something Previously Adopted is the motion that can be used if it is desired to change 
only a part of the text, or to substitute a different version. 
 
In an assembly, except when applied to a constitution, bylaws, or special rules of order, 
require 
 
(a) a two-thirds vote, 
 
(b) a majority vote when notice of intent to make the motion, stating the complete 
substance of the proposed change, has been given at the previous meeting within a 
quarterly time interval or in the call of the present meeting, or 
 
(c) a vote of a majority of the entire membership—any one of which will suffice. 
 
The same vote is required for the assembly to rescind or amend an action taken by 
subordinate bodies, such as some executive boards, empowered to act on behalf of the 
assembly. 
 
In a committee, these motions require a two-thirds vote unless all committee members 



who voted for the motion to be rescinded or amended are present or have received 
ample notice, in which case they require a majority vote.​” 
 

Background: 
 
The Motioner, Trustee Monica Ross-Williams, Motioned for the “Call The Question” at the 
January 15. 2019, Meeting based on Memorandum language in paragraph #1 of the Board 
Packet Titled “​01-15-19 Township-Board-Meeting-Packet​” dated for December 21, 2018, as 
Follows: 

 
“​Patrick Echlin at 1497 Ecorse Road is requesting local government approval for a local 
government approval in pursuit of a ​Small Winemaker’s License​ from the State of 
Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Liquor Control Commission 
(MLCC).” 

 
The Motioner who “Called The Question” learned after the January 15, 2019, General Board 
Meeting of a Revised Memorandum dated January 21, 2019, with the following language in 
paragraph #1 of the Revised Board Packet Titled ​“​01-15-19 Township 
Board-Meeting-Packet-Revised 01-14-19​”,​ as follows: 

 
“​Patrick Echlin at 1497 Ecorse Road is requested local government approval for a local 
government approval in pursuit of a ​Small Winemaker’s License and On Premise 
Tasting Room Permit​ for the State of Michigan Department of Licensing and 
Regulatory Affairs Liquor Control Commission (MLCC).​” 
 

The Motioner who “Called The Question” also learned of a January 25, 2019, Legal Opinion 
from Township Attorney Angela B. King, which read in part, for “Ypsilanti Township’s  Liquor 
License Ordinance 37-25 term “​on-premises​”, in part,  as follows: 

 
“​Section 37-25 of the Township liquor License Ordinance, entitled “Application for new 
“​on-premises​” license” provides: 
 

“In addition to such application as many be required by the state liquor control 
commission for licensing by the state, application shall also be made to the township 
board for a permit to sell alcoholic liquor, beer wine, or spirits, etc, ​on-premises​.​” 
 

And: 
 

“….When trying to understand a term or phrase, the “plain meaning “ of the critical word 
as well as its placement and purpose in the context of the ordinance must be 
considered.” 
 



And: 
 
“​….​On-premises​ means that the places where alcohol is sold or consumed are 
on-premises liquor establishments. On-premises liquor establishments mush, in addition 
to obtaining a license from the LCC, apply for a permit from the Township Board. Prior to 
the Board consideration of the permit request, the requirement and criteria set forth in 
section 37-25 regarding review of such application should be followed.” 

And: 
 

“….The Michigan Liquor Control Act is separate and distinct from the Township’s Liquor 
License Ordinance.”  

And: 
 

“….The Township’s Liquor License Ordinance imposes another layer of requirement on 
the business engaged in the sale of on-premises alcohol.” 
 

New Motions Request: 
 
Trustee Monica Ross-Williams would request two New Motions for Township Board 
Consideration,which would read as follows: 
 
Motion #1: 
“REQUEST FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT APPROVAL OF A SMALL WINEMAKERS 
LICENSE FOR PATRICK ECKLIN AND JEFFREY FRASURE TO BE LOCATED AT 1497 
ECORSE RD.” 
 
Motion #2: 
“REQUEST FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT APPROVAL OF A SMALL WINEMAKERS ON- 
PREMISE TASTING PERMIT LICENSE FOR PATRICK ECKLIN AND JEFFREY FRASURE 
TO BE LOCATED AT 1497 ECORSE RD. WITH CONDITIONS UPON RECOMMENDATION 
OF TOWNSHIP LIQUOR COMMITTEE APPROVAL WAIVING THE TOWNSHIP LIQUOR 
COMMISSION APPLICATION FEE; BUILDING APPROVAL, OFFICE OF PLANNING AND 
FIRE DEPARTMENT APPROVAL 
 

Kind Regards, 
Monica Ross-Williams - Ypsilanti Township Trustee 

 
 
 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 









                                   

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO 2019-484 
 

An Ordinance Prohibiting Recreational Marijuana Establishments within 
Ypsilanti Township as Provided by the Recreational Marijuana Ballot 
Initiative 1 of 2018 
  

 The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby ordains that pursuant to the 

authority granted to municipalities in the Recreational Marijuana Ballot Initiative 1 

of 2018, otherwise known as the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marijuana 

Act (the Act), as amended,  marijuana establishments as defined in the Act, are 

prohibited within the boundaries of Ypsilanti Township. 

 

Penalty for Violations: Violation of this Ordinance constitutes a municipal civil 

infraction punishable by a $500 fine. The violator shall be required to pay all 

direct and indirect expenses incurred by the Township in connection with the 

prosecution of the civil infraction. Each day during which a violation continues to 

exist shall be a separate offense. 

 

The Township may seek injunctive relief against persons alleged to be in 

violation of this Ordinance and such other relief as may be provided by law. 

  

Severability 

 Should any section, subdivision, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

Ordinance be declared by the Courts to be invalid, the same shall not affect the 

validity of the Ordinance as a whole or any part thereof other than the part as 

invalidated. 

 
Publication 
 This Ordinance shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation as 

required by law.   

 
 
Effective date 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon publication in a newspaper of 

general circulation as required by law.   

 

 

 

 

  

 



Memo 

To:  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 

From:       Angela King 

Date:       February 4, 2019 

Re:       Proposed Recreational Marijuana Ordinance  

 
 
 
In November 2018, Michigan voters approved the legalization of 
recreational marijuana (Recreation Marijuana Ballot Initiative 1 of 2018). 
This Ballot Initiative is not to be confused with the Michigan Medical 
Marijuana Act passed in 2008 which legalized medical marijuana or the 
Michigan Medical Marijuana Facilities Act passed in 2016. The 2008 
Medical Marijuana Ballot Initiative, the 2016 Medical Marijuana Facilities 
Act and the 2018  Recreational Marijuana Ballot Initiative are three 
separate laws.  The proposed Ordinance only relates to the 2018 
Recreational Marijuana law.  It does not affect medical marijuana patients’ 
rights or medical marijuana caregivers rights under the 2008 Medical 
Marijuana Act. The proposed ordinance does not affect an individual’s right 
under to grow up to 12  marijuana plants for personal use or a caregiver’s 
right to grow up to 72 plants for their patients and themselves. The  only 
area that the proposed ordinance concerns are potential recreational 
marijuana businesses within the Township.  
 
What is a recreational marijuana business ? 
 
Under the 2018 law, a recreational marijuana business, includes a number 
of different types of commercial enterprises: (1) recreational marijuana 
growers and sellers of up to 2,000 marijuana plants; (2) recreational 
marijuana safety compliance facilities (testing facilities for potency and 
presence of contaminants); (3) recreational marijuana processors 
(preparation of marijuana plant by compounding, blending, extracting, 

   McLain & Winters  
        61 N. Huron 
  Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
      (734) 481-1120 
  (734) 481-8909 FAX  



infusing marijuana); (4) recreational marijuana microbusinesses (cultivates, 
processes and packages 150 marijuana plants); (5) recreational marijuana 
retailer (retail sale of marijuana); and (6) recreational marijuana 
transporters (transports marijuana to and from other marijuana 
establishments). 
 
 Township Boards have the right, under the 2018 Ballot Initiative, to decide 
whether large scale commercial recreational marijuana businesses are 
permitted within their communities. 
 
The  Recreational Marijuana Act of 2018 does not have a specific deadline 
for when a municipality must act if it wishes to opt out (prohibit) 
recreational marijuana establishments. However, under the new law, if a 
Township does not take action to prohibit commercial recreational 
marijuana businesses, they are automatically allowed.    
 
A number of cities and townships have already adopted ordinances which 
prohibit recreational marijuana establishments within their borders. It is 
important that this issue be considered and decided by the Board since 
non-action under the Recreational Marijuana Act is considered permission 
to locate within the Township.  Once a recreational marijuana 
establishment is licensed and operating within a Township which has not 
adopted an ordinance prohibiting such establishments, the business will be 
allowed to continue so long as the operation complies with state law and 
regulations. 
 
I have drafted a proposed ordinance which, if adopted, will, prohibit 
recreational marijuana businesses within the Township.  If in the future, 
this Board or future Boards wish to revisit the issue, the ordinance may be 
changed.  If the ordinance is not adopted, all types of recreational 
marijuana businesses will automatically be allowed to locate within the 
Township.  
 
. 
 
If the Ordinance is adopted, it will preserve the status quo and allow time 
for the State to adopt regulations governing how this new law will be 
applied to commercial marijuana businesses.  Maintaining the status quo 
will also enable you to learn from other communities that allow commercial 
marijuana businesses to operate within their borders.  This will help you to 
decide whether permitting marijuana businesses in Ypsilanti Township will 
add or detract from the overall community environment. It will also allow 
time to consider other important  questions such as zoning districts and 



other special considerations that the Township may have regarding 
recreational marijuana businesses. 
 
. 
 

 

 

End memo. 

Angela B. King 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

COUNTY OF WASHTENAW, MICHIGAN 
 

Agreement for Subaward of Federal Financial Assistance 
  
 
           The COUNTY OF WASHTENAW is a recipient of federal financial assistance grant dollars.  
These funds are received directly from the federal government and indirectly from the State of 
Michigan and several local entities.  The County sometimes passes through a portion of this 
federal financial assistance to other organizations located within (or in the vicinity of) the 
geographical boundaries of the County to assist them in carrying out the objectives of the 
applicable federal grant or program. 
 
           AGREEMENT is made this 15th day of January, 2019, by the COUNTY OF 
WASHTENAW, a municipal corporation, with offices located in the County Administration 
Building, 220 North Main Street, Ann Arbor, Michigan, as the pass-through entity (hereinafter 
referred to as the County) and, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, located at 7200 S. Huron 
River Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197, (hereinafter often referred to as the Subrecipient). 
 
           This agreement is a subaward of federal financial assistance by the County to the 
Subrecipient intended to assist, stimulate, or support the Subrecipient in carrying out its allowable 
activities under the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program as requested by the Subrecipient in its application 
to the County for federal financial assistance. 
 

Flow of Federal Financial Assistance in this Subaward Agreement 
 

Federal Funds From:  Passed Through:  To: 

U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development 

    Washtenaw County 

 

     Charter Township of   
Ypsilanti 

   (Grantor)    (Pass-Through Entity)      (Subrecipient) 
 

ARTICLE I – REQUIRED DATA ELEMENTS 
 

(As detailed in Section 200.331 of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR Chapter I, and Chapter II, Parts 200, 215, 220, 
225, 230) issued December 26, 2013 by the Executive Office of the President, Office of 
Management and Budget, hereinafter referred to as the Uniform Guidance.) 
 

Subrecipient Name (must match 
registered name in DUNS) 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

Subrecipient DUNS Number  
Federal Award Identification Number 
(FAIN) 

$130,000 - B-18-UC-26-006 

Federal Award Date (the date when 
the federal award is signed by the 
authorized official of the federal 
awarding agency) 

2018 – September 19, 2018 
 

Subaward Period of Performance 
(start and end date) 

1/15/2019-12/31/2019 

Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by 
this Agreement 

$130,000.00 

Total Amount of Federal Funds 
Obligated to the Subrecipient 

$130,000.00 

Total Amount of the Federal Award 2018 – $2,109,235.00 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

Federal Award Project Description 
(as required to be responsive to the 
Federal Funding Accountability and 
Transparency Act (FFATA) described 
in Title 2 Code of Federal Regulations  
Part 170) 

This contract includes support of eligible costs 
associated with milling the existing pavement, structure 
adjustments, ADA sidewalk ramps, and the placement 
of a 3 inch HMA resurfacing of Foley Avenue in the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti.   

Name of Federal Awarding Agency Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
Name of County (Pass-Through 
Entity) 

Washtenaw County 

Name and Contact Information for 
Awarding Official 

Gregory Dill 
220 N Main 
PO Box 8645 
Ann Arbor, MI 48107 
Phone: 734-222-6850 

CFDA Number and Name 14 218 – Community Development Block Grant 
Is this Subaward for Research and 
Development? (answer Yes or No) 

No 

Indirect Cost Rate for the Federal 
Award (either an approved federally 
recognized indirect cost rate negotiated 
between the Subrecipient and the 
federal government or, if no such rate 
exists, either a rate negotiated between 
the County and Subrecipient or a de 
minimus indirect cost rate of 10% of 
modified total direct costs may be used).  
Subrecipient may choose to charge only 
direct costs to this agreement. 

Not applicable 

 
 
 In consideration of the promises below, the parties mutually agree as follows: 
 

 
ARTICLE II - SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
 The Subrecipient will be responsible for administering Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
road improvements for the eligible costs of working with the Washtenaw County Road 
Commission to make improvements to Foley Avenue (which runs between S. Harris Road to 
Andrea Street) to include milling the existing pavement, structure adjustments, ADA sidewalk 
ramps, and the placement of a 3 inch HMA resurfacing. 
 
The contract will be paid for with 2018-2019 Urban County CDBG funding, not to exceed One 
Hundred Thirty Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($130,000.00), in accordance with the 
specifications described in this agreement and the budget in Attachment B.  The Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti will be responsible for covering any remaining costs in excess of 
$130,000. 
 

ARTICLE III - PAYMENT AND CASH MANAGEMENT 
 
            If the County is paid in advance by the federal awarding agency under the above named 
federal assistance award, the Subrecipient may also be paid in advance if it meets the 
requirements in Section 1 below. 
 
            Section 1 - Cash Advances.  The Subrecipient may request an advance of funds under 
this agreement if it maintains or demonstrates the willingness to maintain both:  



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

1. written procedures that minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds from the 
County and the subsequent disbursement of the funds by the Subrecipient,  

2. financial management systems that meet the standards for fund control and accountability 
as defined in Section 200.305 of the Uniform Guidance. 
.   

            Requests for advance of funds must be limited to the minimum amount needed and must 
be timed to be in accordance with the actual, immediate cash requirements of the Subrecipient in 
carrying out the terms of this agreement.  The timing and amount of the advance must be as close 
as is "administratively feasible" to the actual disbursement to be made by the Subrecipient. 
 
 Section 2 - Reimbursement.  If the Subrecipient does not meet the requirements in Section 
1 above, it shall submit periodic reimbursement requests to the County.  This may be done on a 
monthly or quarterly basis.  The reimbursement request shall be accompanied by the agreed upon 
financial and programmatic reports. The County shall pay the Subrecipient within 30 calendar 
days after the receipt of the reimbursement request and the agreed upon financial/programmatic 
reports, unless the County reasonably believes the reimbursement request to be improper.   
 
 

ARTICLE IV - REPORTING OF SUBRECIPIENT 
 
 Section 1 - The Subrecipient is to report to Tara Cohen, CDBG Management Analyst, and 
will cooperate and confer with him/her as necessary to insure satisfactory work progress. 
 
 Section 2 - The Subrecipient shall submit financial reports as requested to Deb Truhn. 
The Subrecipient shall submit programmatic reports as requested to Tara Cohen.  
 
 Section 3 - All reports, estimates, memoranda and documents submitted by the 
Subrecipient must be dated and bear the Subrecipient's name.  Financial reports shall be 
submitted in a timely manner to the County and shall be in agreement with the amounts shown in 
the Subrecipient’s financial system and shall be supported by appropriate documentation (payroll 
records, invoices, etc.).  Final financial and programmatic reports shall be submitted by the 
Subrecipient within 30 days of the end of this agreement unless an extension of time is granted 
in writing by the County. 
 
 Section 4 - The Subrecipient agrees to only incur costs under this agreement which are 
eligible under the Cost Principles detailed in Section 200.400-475 of the Uniform Guidance. 
 
            Section 5 - The Subrecipient shall retain all reports, records and supporting documentation 
pertaining to this agreement for a period of three years from the date of submission of the final 
expenditure report and shall make them available to the County and the federal awarding agency 
upon request. 
 
 Section 6 - All reports made in connection with these services are subject to review and 
final approval by the County Administrator. 
 
 Section 7 - The County may review and inspect the Subrecipient's activities during the 
term of this agreement. 
 
 Section 8 - When applicable, the Subrecipient will submit a final, written report to the 
County Administrator. 
 
 Section 9 - After reasonable notice to the Subrecipient, the County may review any of the 
Subrecipient’s internal records, reports, or insurance policies. 
 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

 Section 10 - The Subrecipient and/or subcontractors shall disclose in writing to the County 
any potential conflict of interest it has related to the County or this agreement subject to the 
provisions 2 CFR 200.318. 
 
 Section 11 - The Subrecipient shall disclose in writing to the County in a timely manner all 
violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting 
this agreement. 
 
 Section 12 - The Subrecipient shall report to the County in a timely manner if any adverse 
or problematic situations arise between reporting deadlines describing the nature of the problem 
and what is being done to address it. 
 
 

ARTICLE V - TERM 
 
 This agreement begins on January 15, 2019 and ends on December 31, 2019, with an 
option to extend an additional 6 months.  No costs eligible under this agreement shall be 
incurred by the Subrecipient before or after these dates, except with prior written approval of the 
County. 
 
 

ARTICLE VI- RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SUBRECIPIENT 
 
           Section 1 - The Subrecipient agrees to comply with all applicable federal, State, and local 
regulations including the Uniform Guidance. The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the 
management systems standards (financial management (Sections 200.302-304), procurement 
(Sections 200.317-326), and property management (Sections 200.310-316)) of the Uniform 
Guidance. 
 
           Section 2 - The Subrecipient agrees to have performed a Single Audit of its federal 
expenditures if it reaches the Single Audit dollar threshold in federal expenditures during its fiscal 
year as detailed in Section 200.501 of the Uniform Guidance. The County reserves the right to 
perform or cause to be performed additional audits if it deems such to be necessary to insure 
compliance with the terms of this agreement or to determine the eligibility of the reported 
expenditures for reimbursement. 
 
           Section 3 - The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the provisions of the Byrd Amendment 
(Public Law 101-121, Section 319 - 31 U.S. Code Section 1352) which prohibits the use of federal funds 
by the recipient or subrecipient of a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement to 
pay any person to influence or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the federal funds awarded under this agreement. 
 
           Section 4 – The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the provisions of the Stevens 
Amendment (Section 8136 of the Department of Defense Appropriations Act – Public Law 100-463) which 
stipulates that when issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid solicitations, 
and other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with federal 
money, all grantees receiving federal funds, including but not limited to state and local 
governments, shall clearly state (1) the percentage of the total cost of the program or project 
which will be financed with federal money, (2) the dollar amount of federal funds for the project or 
program, and (3) the percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program 
that will be funded by non-governmental sources. 
 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

           Section 5 - In addition to this agreement, the Subrecipient shall complete, sign, and submit 
to the County the following documents which are attached as part of this agreement: 

1. Standard Assurances 
2. Certifications Regarding Lobbying; Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility 

Matters; and Drug-Free Workplace Requirements 
3. Audit Certification 

 
 

ARTICLE VII – SUSPENSION OF FUNDING 
 
The County may suspend funding to the Subrecipient, in whole or in part, or other measures may 
be imposed for any of the following reasons: 

1. Failure to expend funds in a timely manner consistent with the agreement milestones, 
guidance, and assurances. 

2. Failure to comply with the requirements or statutory objectives of federal or state law. 
3. Failure to follow agreement requirements or special conditions. 
4. Proposal or implementation of substantial plan changes to the extent that, if originally 

submitted, the application would not have been approved for funding. 
5. Failure to submit required reports. 
6. Filing of a false certification on the application or other report or document. 
7. Failure to adequately manage, monitor or direct the activities of its subrecipients that are 

funded under this agreement. 
 
Before taking action, the County will provide the Subrecipient reasonable notice of intent to 
impose corrective measures and will make every effort to resolve the problem informally. 
 
The County reserves the right to recommend to the federal government that the Subrecipient be 
suspended or debarred in the case of sustained significant noncompliance by the Subrecipient 
with the award provisions. 
 
 

ARTICLE VIII- PERSONNEL 
 
 Section 1 - The Subrecipient will provide the required services and will not subaward or 
assign the services without the County’s written approval. 
 
 Section 2 - The Subrecipient will not hire any County employee for any of the required 
services without the County’s written approval. 
 
 Section 3 -  The parties agree that all work done under this agreement shall be completed 
in the United States and that none of the work will be partially or fully completed by either an 
offshore entity or offshore business interest either owned or affiliated with the Subrecipent.  For 
purposes of this agreement, the term, “offshore” refers to any area outside the contiguous United 
States, Alaska or Hawaii. 

 
 

ARTICLE IX-INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 

 Contractor and the County shall, at all times, be deemed to be independent contractors 
and nothing herein shall be construed to create or imply that there exists between the parties a 
partnership, joint venture or other business organization.  Contractor shall hold no authority, 
express or implied, to commit, obligate or make representations on behalf of the County and 
shall make no representation to others to the contrary.   
 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

 Nothing herein is intended nor shall be construed for any purpose as creating the 
relationship of employer and employee or agent and principal between the parties.  Except as 
otherwise specified in this contract, Contractor retains the sole right and obligation to direct, 
control or supervise the details and means by which the services under this contract are 
provided.   
 
 Contractor shall not be eligible for, or participate in, any insurance, pension, workers’ 
compensation insurance, profit sharing or other plans established for the benefit of the County’s 
employees.  Contractor shall be solely responsible for payment of all taxes arising out of the 
Contractor’s activities in connection with this Agreement, including, without limitation, federal 
and state income taxes, social security taxes, unemployment insurance taxes and any other tax 
or business license fees as required.  The County shall not be responsible for withholding any 
income or employment taxes whatsoever on behalf of the Contractor.   

 
ARTICLE X - INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT 

 
 The Subrecipient will protect, defend and indemnify the County, its officers, agents, 
servants, volunteers and employees from any and all liabilities, claims, liens, fines, demands and 
costs, including legal fees, of whatsoever kind and nature which may result in injury or death to 
any persons, including the Subrecipient’s own employees, and for loss or damage to any property, 
including property owned or in the care, custody or control of the County in connection with or in 
any way incident to or arising out of the occupancy, use, service, operations, performance or 
non-performance of work in connection with this agreement resulting in whole or in part from 
negligent acts or omissions of Subrecipient, any subcontractor of the Subrecipient, or any 
employee, agent or representative of the Subrecipient or any subcontractor of the Subrecipient. 
 
 

ARTICLE XI- INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 The Subrecipient will maintain at its own expense during the term of this Agreement, the 
following insurance: 
 

1. Workers' Compensation Insurance with Michigan statutory limits and Employers 
Liability Insurance with a minimum limit of $100,000 each accident for any 
employee. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined single limit of $1,000,000 

each occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.  The County shall be 
added as "additional insured" on general liability policy with respect to the services 
provided under this agreement. 

 
3. Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, hired and non-owned vehicles 

with Personal Protection Insurance and Property Protection Insurance to comply 
with the provisions of the Michigan No Fault Insurance Law, including residual 
liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit of $1,000,000 each 
accident for bodily injury and property damage. For transportation services 
contracts, the County shall be added as additional insured on automobile liability 
policy with respect to the services provided under this contract. 

  
 
 Insurance companies, named insureds and policy forms may be subject to the approval 
of the County Administrator, if requested by the County Administrator.  Such approval shall not 
be unreasonably withheld.  Insurance policies shall not contain endorsements or policy conditions 
which reduce coverage provided to The County.  Subrecipient shall be responsible to the County 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

or insurance companies insuring the County for all costs resulting from both financially unsound 
insurance companies selected by Subrecipient and their inadequate insurance coverage.  
Subrecipient shall furnish the County Administrator with satisfactory certificates of insurance or a 
certified copy of the policy, if requested by the County Administrator.   
 
 No payments will be made to the Subrecipient until the current certificates of insurance 
have been received and approved by the Administrator.  If the insurance as evidenced by the 
certificates furnished by the Subrecipient expires or is canceled during the term of the agreement, 
services and related payments will be suspended. Subrecipient shall furnish certification of 
insurance evidencing such coverage and endorsements at least ten (10) working days prior to 
commencement of services under this agreement. Certificates shall be addressed to the County 
c/o: Office of Community and Economic Development, 415 West Michigan Ave, Suite 2200, 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197, Contract #__________, and shall provide for written notice to the Certificate 
holder of cancellation of coverage.   
 
 

ARTICLE XII - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
 
 The Subrecipient will comply with all federal, state and local regulations, including but not 
limited to all applicable OSHA/MIOSHA requirements and the Americans with Disabilities Act. 
 
           The Subrecipient agrees to maintain the proper organizational status (such as 501 (c)(3) 
if needed) to be eligible to receive federal financial assistance under this grant, including proper 
licensure, registration, etc.  Subrecipient agrees to keep itself in the same legal position/mode of 
organization as when it entered into this agreement. 
 
 

ARTICLE XIII - INTEREST OF SUBRECIPIENT AND COUNTY 
 
 The Subrecipient promises that it has no interest which would conflict with the 
performance of services required by this agreement.  The Subrecipient also promises that, in the 
performance of this agreement, no officer, agent, employee of the County, or member of its 
governing bodies, may participate in any decision relating to this agreement which affects his/her 
personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership or association in which he/she is 
directly or indirectly interested or has any personal or pecuniary interest.  However, this paragraph 
does not apply if there has been compliance with the provisions of Section 3 of Act No. 317 of the 
Public Acts of 1968 and/or Section 30 of Act No. 156 of Public Acts of 1851, as amended by Act 
No. 51 of the Public Acts of 1978, whichever is applicable. 
 
 

ARTICLE XIV - CONTINGENT FEES 
 
 The Subrecipient promises that it has not employed or retained any company or person, 
other than bona fide employees working solely for the Subrecipient, to solicit or secure this 
agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than bona fide 
employees working solely for the Subrecipient, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, 
gifts or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
agreement. For breach of this promise, the County may cancel this agreement without liability or, 
at its discretion, deduct the full amount of the fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or 
contingent fee from the compensation due the Subrecipient. 
 

 
ARTICLE XV - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

 The Subrecipient will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, physical handicap, age, 
height, weight, marital status, veteran status, religion and political belief (except as it relates to a 
bona fide occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the 
business). 
 
 The Subrecipient will take affirmative action to eliminate discrimination based on sex, race, 
or a handicap in the hiring of applicant and the treatment of employees. Affirmative action will 
include, but not be limited to: Employment; upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment 
advertisement; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; selection for 
training, including apprenticeship. 
 
            The Subrecipient agrees to post notices containing this policy against discrimination in 
conspicuous places available to applicants for employment and employees. All solicitations or 
advertisements for employees, placed by or on the behalf of the Subrecipient, will state that all 
qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, creed, color, 
sex, sexual orientation, national origin, physical handicap, age, height, weight, marital status, 
veteran status, religion and political belief. 

 
 

ARTICLE XVI - LIVING WAGE 
 

The parties understand that the County has enacted a Living Wage Ordinance that 
requires covered vendors who execute a service or professional service agreement with the 
County to pay their employees under that agreement, a minimum of either $13.22 per hour with 
benefits or $14.75 per hour without benefits.  Agreementor agrees to comply with this Ordinance 
in paying its employees.   The Subrecipient understands and agrees that an adjustment of the 
living wage amounts, based upon the Health and Human Services poverty guidelines, will be 
made on or before April 30, 2019 and annually thereafter which amount shall be automatically 
incorporated into this agreement.  County agrees to give the Subrecipient thirty (30) days written 
notice of such change.  The Subrecipient agrees to post a notice containing the County’s Living 
Wage requirements at a location at its place of business accessed by its employees. 

 
 

ARTICLE XVII - ASSIGNS AND SUCCESSORS 
 
 This agreement is binding on the County and the Subrecipient, their successors and 
assigns.  Neither the County nor the Subrecipient will assign or transfer its interest in this 
agreement without the written consent of the other. 
 
 

ARTICLE XVIII - TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
 Termination without cause.  Either party may terminate the agreement by giving thirty (30) 
days written notice to the other party.  Upon any such termination, the Subrecipient agrees to 
return to the County any funds not authorized for use, and the County shall have no further 
obligation to reimburse the Subrecipient.  Upon termination of the agreement, the Subrecipient 
shall submit documentation, in a format specified by the County, to formally end its participation 
in the agreement. 

 
 

ARTICLE XIX - EQUAL ACCESS 
 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

 The Subrecipient shall provide the services set forth in the Scope of Service section of this 
agreement without discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual 
orientation, marital status, physical handicap, or age. 
 

 
ARTICLE XX - OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS AND PUBLICATION  

 
 All documents developed as a result of this agreement will be freely available to the public.  
None may be copyrighted by the Subrecipient.  During the performance of the services, the 
Subrecipient will be responsible for any loss of or damage to the documents while they are in its 
possession and must restore the loss or damage at its expense.  Any use of the information and 
results of this agreement by the Subrecipient must reference the project sponsorship by the 
County.  Any publication of the information or results must be co-authored by the County.   

 
 

ARTICLE XXI - PAYROLL TAXES 
 
 The Subrecipient is responsible for all applicable state and federal social security benefits 
and unemployment taxes for its employees and agrees to indemnify and protect the County 
against such liability. 

 
ARTICLE XXII - PRACTICE AND ETHICS 

 
 The parties will conform to the code of ethics of their respective national professional 
associations. 

 
ARTICLE XXIII - CHANGES IN SCOPE OR SCHEDULE OR SERVICES  

 
 Changes mutually agreed upon by the County and the Subrecipient, will be incorporated 
into this agreement by written amendments signed by both parties.   
 
            Unilateral modification of the agreement may take place by the County if the underlying 
programmatic legislation or regulations are changed by the federal government.  If this unilateral 
modification is objectionable to the Subrecipient, it may withdraw from receiving further federal 
financial assistance under this agreement by giving (thirty) 30 days written notice to the County. 
 
            The Subrecipient agrees to inform the County in writing concerning any proposed changes 
of dates, budget, or services indicated in this agreement, as well as changes of address or 
personnel affecting this agreement.  Changes in dates, budget, or services are subject to prior 
written approval of the County. 
 
 

ARTICLE XXIV - CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM 
 
 This agreement is to be interpreted by the laws of the State of Michigan.  The parties agree 
that the proper forum for any disputes or litigation arising out of this agreement is in Washtenaw 
County, Michigan. 
 
The County and the Subrecipient agree that each must seek its own legal representative and bear 
its own costs, including judgments, in any litigation that may arise from performance of this 
contract.  It is specifically understood and agreed that neither party will indemnify the other party 
in such litigation.  This is not to be construed as a waiver of governmental immunity for either 
party. 
  



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

ARTICLE XXV - EXTENT OF AGREEMENT 
 
 This written agreement, including any attachments thereto, represents the entire 
agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior representations, negotiations or 
agreements whether written or oral. 
 

ARTICLE XXVI – PRIVITY / THIRD PARTIES 
 
            This agreement is solely between the County and Subrecipient.  No other parties are part 
of this agreement.  This agreement is not intended to make any person or entity, not a party to 
this agreement, a third party beneficiary hereof or to confer on a third party any rights or 
obligations enforceable in their favor. 
 

ARTICLE XXVII - SEVERABILITY 
 
            The invalidity or unenforceability of any provisions of this agreement shall not affect the 
validity or enforceability of any other provision of this agreement, which shall remain in full force 
and effect. 

ARTICLE XXVIII - NOTICES 
 
            Communication notices for this agreement may be delivered via electronic mail, U.S. mail, 
hand delivery, or fax. 
 
           The individual or officer signing this agreement certifies by his or her signature that he or 
she is authorized to sign this agreement on behalf of the organization he or she represents.  By 
signing this agreement, the County and the Subrecipient agree to comply with all of the 
requirements specified in this agreement. 
 
ATTESTED TO:    WASHTENAW COUNTY (Pass-Through Entity) 
 
 
By:__________________________     By:__________________________________ 
     Lawrence Kestenbaum     (DATE)               Gregory Dill        (DATE) 
     County Clerk/Register           County Administrator 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:  CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
(Subrecipient) 
 
 
By:_____________________________ BY:__________________________________ 
     Teresa Gillotti                      (DATE)             Brenda Stumbo                            (DATE) 
      Director                 Township Supervisor 
 
 
           By: _________________________________ 
       Karen Lovejoy Roe   (DATE)   
       Township Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
By: _____________________________ 
      Curtis N. Hedger      (DATE) 
      Office of Corporation Counse 
 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS 
 

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they are required to attest. 
Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in the regulations before completing this form. 
Signature of this form provides for compliance with certification requirements under 34 CFR Part 82, "New Restrictions 
on Lobbying," and 34 CFR Part 85, "Government-wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement) and 
Government-wide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Grants)." The certifications shall be treated as a material 
representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when Washtenaw County determines to award the covered 
transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement. 
 
1. LOBBYING 

 

As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code, 
and implemented at 34 CFR Part 82, for persons 
entering into a grant or cooperative agreement over 
$100,000, as defined at 34 CFR Part 82, Sections 
82.105 and 82.110, the applicant certifies that: 
 
(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or 
will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an 
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with 
the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of 
any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of 
any Federal grant or cooperative agreement; 
 
(b) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds 
have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with this Federal 
grant or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall 
complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure 
Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its 
instructions; 
 
(c) The undersigned shall require that the language of 
this certification be included in the award documents 
for all subawards at all tiers (including subgrants, 
contracts under grants and cooperative agreements, 
and subcontracts) and that all subrecipients shall 
certify and disclose accordingly. 
 
2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 
 

As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and 
Suspension, and implemented at 34 CFR Part 85, for 
prospective participants in primary covered 
transactions, as defined at 34 CFR Part 85, Sections 
85.105 and 85.110— 
 
A. The applicant certifies that it and its principals: 
 
(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed 
for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal 
department or agency; 

 
(b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this 
application been convicted of or had a civil judgment 
rendered against them for commission of fraud or a 
criminal offense in connection with obtaining, 
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, 
State, or local) transaction or contract under a public 
transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, 
forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, 
making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 
(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally 
or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, 
State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses 
enumerated in paragraph (2)(b) of this certification; and 
 
(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this 
application had one or more public transaction 
(Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or 
default; and 
 
B. Where the applicant is unable to certify to any of the 
statements in this certification, he or she shall attach 
an explanation to this application. 
 
3. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 
(GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS) 
 

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 
and implemented at 34 CFR Part 85, Subpart F, for 
grantees, as defined at 34 CFR Part 85, Sections 
85.605 and 85.610 – 
 
A. The applicant certifies that it will or will continue to 
provide a drug-free workplace by: 
 
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the 
unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, 
possession, or use of a controlled substance is 
prohibited in the grantee's workplace and specifying 
the actions that will be taken against employees for 
violation of such prohibition; 
 
(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness 
program to inform employees about:  
 
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
 
(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free 
workplace; 
 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and 
employee assistance programs; and 
 
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon 
employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the 
workplace; 
 
(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be 
engaged in the performance of the grant be given a 
copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); 
 
(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by 
paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment under 
the grant, the employee will: 
 
(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and 
 
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction 
for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the 
workplace no later than five calendar days after such 
conviction; (e) Notifying the agency, in writing, within 
10 calendar days after receiving notice under 
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise 
receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers 
of convicted employees must provide notice, including 
position title, to: Washtenaw County Administrator’s 
Office, 220 N. Main, P.O. Box 8645, Ann Arbor, MI 
48107-8645. Notice shall include the identification 
number(s) of each affected grant; 
 
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 
calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph 
(d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so 
convicted: 
 
(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such 
an employee, up to and including termination, 
consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973, as amended; or (2) Requiring such 
employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse 
assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such 
purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law 
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; 
 
(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a 
drug-free workplace through implementation of 
paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).  
 
B. The grantee may insert in the space provided below 
the site(s) for the performance of work done in 
connection with the specific grant: 
 
Place of Performance (Street address. city, county, 
state, zip code) 
 
 
 

___________________________________________ 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Check [ ] if there are workplaces on file that are not 
identified here. 
 
DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 
(GRANTEES WHO ARE INDIVIDUALS) 
 

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 
and implemented at 34 CFR Part 85, Subpart F, for 
grantees, as defined at 34 CFR Part 85, Sections 
85.605 and 85.610-  
 
A. As a condition of the grant, I certify that I will not 
engage in the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled 
substance in conducting any activity with the grant; and 
 
B. If convicted of a criminal drug offense resulting from 
a violation occurring during the conduct of any grant 
activity, I will report the conviction, in writing, within 10 
calendar days of the conviction, to: Washtenaw County 
Administrator’s Office, 220 N. Main, P.O. Box 8645, 
Ann Arbor, MI 48107-8645. Notice shall include the 
identification number(s) of each affected grant. 
 
As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, 
I hereby certify that the applicant will comply with the 
above certifications. 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Name of Subrecipient Organization 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Printed Name and Title of Subrecipient’s Authorized 
Representative 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Signature of Subrecipient’s Authorized Representative 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Date 

 

 
 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

Subrecipient Audit Certification 
 

Federal Audit Requirements - Fiscal Years Beginning After December 26, 2014 
 
Non-federal organizations which expend $750,000 or more in federal funds during their fiscal year are 
required to have a Single Audit performed in accordance with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR Chapter I, and Chapter II, Parts 200, 215, 
220, 225, 230) issued December 26, 2013 by the Executive Office of the President, Office of Management 
and Budget.   Subrecipients must submit their audit report to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse within the 
earlier of 30 days after receipt of the auditor’s report, or within 9 months after the end of the audit period for 
each year the Subrecipient meets the $750,000 federal expenditure threshold. 

 
 
Program:  _______________________________________   CFDA Number: _________________ 
 

Subrecipient Information: 
 

  Organization Name: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
  Street Address:  ________________________________________________________ 
 
  City, State, Zip Code: ________________________________________________________ 
   
  Independent Audit Firm: ________________________________________________________ 
 
  Certification for Fiscal Year Ending (mm/dd/yyyy): ____________________________________ 
   

 (Check appropriate box) : 

I certify that the Subrecipient shown above does not expect to expend $750,000 or more in federal 
funds during at least one fiscal year that funds are received for the above listed program and thus it will 
not be required to have a Single Audit performed under the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR Chapter I, and Chapter II, Parts 200, 
215, 220, 225, 230) issued December 26, 2013 by the Executive Office of the President, Office of 
Management and Budget, for the above listed program. 

 
I certify that the Subrecipient shown above expects it will expend $750,000 or more in federal funds 
during at least one fiscal year that funds are received for the above listed program and thus it will be 
required to have a Single Audit performed under the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR Chapter I, and Chapter II, Parts 200, 
215, 220, 225, 230) issued December 26, 2013 by the Executive Office of the President, Office of  
Management and Budget. 
 
 
__________________________________________  _________________________ 
Signature of Subrecipient’s Authorized Representative  Date 
 
 
For Washtenaw County Use Only 
 
 
Reviewed By:_______________________________  Date:_____________________ 
 

 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A- SCOPE AND LOCATION OF SERVICES & PROJECT TIMELINE 
 
 
NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION/ SCOPE OF WORK:  
 
WASHTENAW COUNTY will contract with the CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI for the 
eligible costs of improving Foley Avenue, as described in the Scope of Services, to meet the 
American’s with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (UFAS). 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti will contract with the Washtenaw County Road Commission 
(WCRC), and WCRC will carry out the work described in the Scope of Services. The Township 
will pay WCRC directly for this project, and Washtenaw County will reimburse the Township for 
eligible project costs upon receipt of all required documentation. This road improvement project 
will be paid for with 2018 CDBG funding in accordance with the budget in Attachment B. 
 
 
Project Location 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti – Foley Avenue from S. Harris Avenue easterly to Andrea Street, 
for total approximate 2,085 lineal feet.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

 
PROJECT TIMELINE: 

 
 

Activity Deadline 

WCRC will award contract to most responsible and responsive bidder. 3/5/2019 
Contractor will begin road improvement work. 4/22/2019 
Office of Community Development will perform Davis-Bacon Interviews. 4/22/19 – 5/31/19 
Contractor will achieve substantial completion of road improvement project. 5/31/2019 
Contractor will complete construction and WCRC will perform a final 
inspection. 

5/31/2019 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti will submit request for reimbursement from 
Washtenaw County OCED, along with accompanying proof of payment and 
original Davis-Bacon payroll forms. 

6/28/2019 

Project Completion Date: 6/28/2019 
 
  



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENT B- PROJECT BUDGET 

 
SUMMARY OF TERMS: 
 
 The COUNTY agrees to pay to or on behalf of the TOWNSHIP an amount not to exceed 
One Hundred Thirty Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($130,000.00) in 2018-2019 CDBG 
Funds according to the budget below: 
 
 
PROJECT BUDGET: 
 

 Foley Avenue Road Improvement Budget 

REVENUE SOURCE(S): TOTAL 

Grant Amounts  
CDBG (2018) - allocation   

 
$130,000 

Other Support (In-Kind)   
Status of Funds   
Total  Revenues $130,000 

 

PROGRAM EXPENSES TOTAL 

Personnel, Taxes & Fringe Benefits $1,220 
Construction $128,780 
Total Expenditures $130,000 

 
 
  



  Contract # __________ 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT C  
 



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE 
 

 This Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release (“Agreement”) is made and entered into 
the last date set forth on the signature page below by and between Ypsilanti Community Utilities 
Authority (“YCUA”), Charter Township of Ypsilanti (“Township”), Trenchless Solutions, Inc. 
(“Trenchless”), and JA Utilities, LLC (“JA”).  YCUA, Township, Trenchless and JA may be 
referred to collectively herein as the (“parties”). 
 
 W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 WHEREAS, YCUA and Township have filed a lawsuit against Trenchless, JA and Corby 
Energy Services, Inc. (“Corby”), which is currently pending in the 14-B District Court for the 
County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan, being Case No. 18-004173-CV (the “Lawsuit”); 
 

WHEREAS, the Lawsuit seeks damages resulting from the allegedly improper and/or 
unauthorized opening of a fire hydrant on or about April 9, 2018 in connection with a light 
installation project at or near the Township’s Civic Center, as further described in the pleadings;  
  

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed to settle and resolve all claims and disputes between 
them arising out of the facts and circumstances which form the basis for the Lawsuit. 

 
1. Settlement Amounts.   
 

1.1 Trenchless.  Trenchless, through its insurance carrier, Hastings Mutual 
Insurance Company, hereby agrees to jointly pay YCUA and Township the 
sum of Seven Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($7,000.00) as full and final 
settlement in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 

1.2 JA.  JA, through its insurance carrier, EMC Insurance, hereby agrees to 
jointly pay YCUA and Township the sum of Seven Thousand and 00/100 
Dollars ($7,000.00) as full and final settlement in accordance with the 
terms of this agreement. 

 
1.3 Payment.  The payments shall be made payable to Ypsilanti Community 

Utilities Authority and shall be sent to the following address: Thomas E. 
Daniels, Esq., Pear Sperling, Eggan & Daniels, P.C., 24 Frank Lloyd 
Wright Drive #D-2000, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48105. 

 
1.4 Dismissal.  Upon the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the parties 

shall enter into a stipulation and order for dismissal of the Lawsuit in its 
entirety with prejudice and without costs to any party, but subject to the 
provisions of this Agreement and the court’s reservation of jurisdiction for 
the purpose of enforcement of this Agreement.  

 
2. YCUA Release.  In consideration of entering into this Agreement, YCUA does 



2 
 

hereby waive, release and forever discharge Trenchless, JA, Corby, Hastings 
Mutual Insurance Company and EMC Insurance, together with their 
representatives, agents, attorneys, successors and assigns, from any and all claims, 
liabilities and causes of action arising from or out of the acts and occurrences 
which form the basis of the Lawsuit.   

 
3. Township’s Release.  In consideration of entering into this Agreement, Township 

does hereby waive, release and forever discharge Trenchless, JA, Corby, Hastings 
Mutual Insurance Company and EMC Insurance, together with their 
representatives, agents, attorneys, successors and assigns, from any and all claims, 
liabilities and causes of action arising from or out of the acts and occurrences 
which form the basis of the Lawsuit.    

 
4. Trenchless’ Release.  In consideration of entering into this Agreement, Trenchless 

does hereby waive, release and forever discharge YCUA, Township, JA, and 
EMC Insurance, together with their representatives, agents, attorneys, successors 
and assigns, from any and all claims, liabilities and causes of action arising from 
or out of the acts and occurrences which form the basis of the Lawsuit.  
 

5. JA’s Release.  In consideration of entering into this Agreement, JA does hereby 
waive, release and forever discharge YCUA, Township, Trenchless and Hastings 
Mutual Insurance Company, together with their representatives, agents, attorneys, 
successors and assigns, from any and all claims, liabilities and causes of action 
arising from or out of the acts and occurrences which form the basis of the 
Lawsuit.  

 
6. Miscellaneous.   

 
6.1 Binding Effect.  All agreements and understandings between the parties 

hereto are embodied and expressed herein, and the terms of this 
Agreement are contractual and not a mere recital.  The foregoing releases 
shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, successors and 
assigns of the respective parties released.  
 

6.2 Voluntary.  The parties acknowledge that they have read this Agreement in 
its entirety and represent that they have executed this Agreement 
voluntarily, after independent investigation and without fraud, duress, or 
undue influence.   

 
6.3 No Admission of Liability.  It is understood and agreed that this settlement 

is the compromise of a disputed claim between the parties to this 
agreement and that the payments made are not to be construed as an 
admission of liability on the part of the parties hereby released, and that all 
released parties deny liability therefor, and intend merely to avoid 



3 
 

litigation and buy their peace. 
 

6.4 Photocopies.  A photocopy of this Agreement may be used as an original. 
 

6.5  Signature in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts 
and when done so shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
6.6 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 

according to the laws of the State of Michigan. 
 

THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE READ THE FOREGOING AGREEMENT AND 
FULLY UNDERSTAND ALL PROVISIONS CONTAINED THEREIN. 
 
     

 
Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority 

 
Date:      By: ________________________________ 
      Its: _______________________  
      
 
 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
Date:      By: ________________________________ 
      Its: _______________________ 
 

 
 
Trenchless Solutions, Inc. 

 
Date:      By: ________________________________ 
      Its: _______________________ 
 

 
 
JA Utilities, LLC 

 
Date:      By: ________________________________ 
      Its: _______________________ 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Hydro Station

MEMORANDUM 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Phone:  (734) 544.3690 
Fax:  (734) 544.3626 

www.ytown.org 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Michael Saranen, Hydro Operations 

DATE: January 23, 2019 

      RE: Request to approve Barr Engineering to provide 
Professional Services to assist Hydro Operations in 
completing on the 5 year Emergency Action Plan 
Functional Exercise and Report as it is required by the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), Section 
6 of the Engineering Guidelines in the amount not to 
exceed $ 26,000 to be charged to 252.252.000.801.000. 

I am asking to Board approve Barr Engineering to provide Professional Services for 
assisting Hydro Operation in completing the 5 year Functional Exercise and Report per 
the FERC, Chapter 6 of the Engineering Guidelines. 

Every 5 years the FERC requires the Hydro Station to conduct an Emergency Action 
Plan Functional Exercise and then complete a formal report that is filed with the FERC. 

This functional exercise is an extensive process involving local, state and federal 
agencies from first responders, utility providers, DOT and emergency planners. 

I request we use Barr Engineering for this required activity because of the extensive 
knowledge Barr has with the Hydro Station. Barr has been providing engineering support 
to the Twp. for over 20 years with a track record of providing quality work. 

This is a budgeted item for 2019 in line item 252.252.000.801.000 

Please place this item on the next available Board Meeting agenda under New Business

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 
HEATHER ROE 
MONICA ROSS-

WILLIAMS JIMMIE 
  

http://www.ytown.org/


 

 

Barr Engineering Co.   3005 Boardwalk Street, Suite 100, Ann Arbor, MI  48108   734.922.4400  www.barr.com 

January 23, 2019 

Mr. Michael Saranen 
Hydro Operations 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 South Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Re: Ford Lake Dam – Emergency Action Plan Exercises 

Dear Mr. Saranen: 

This letter summarizes Barr Engineering Co.’s (Barr’s) proposal to assist the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
(Township) with an exercise of the existing Emergency Action Plan (EAP) for the Ford Lake Dam 
hydropower project, as requested in the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission’s (FERC’s) July 10, 2018 
letter to the Township. The purpose of the exercise is to test the EAP, ensure the local agencies 
understand the inundation maps and other information available in the EAP, observe the actions your 
personnel and the agencies take during a simulated emergency, and discuss possible changes to the EAP 
to improve its effectiveness.   

Barr will design and facilitate a table top exercise and a functional exercise of the project’s EAP, in 
accordance with FERC Engineering Guidelines for the Evaluation of Hydropower Projects, Chapter 6 – 
Emergency Action Plans. We will work with the Township to invite appropriate state and local emergency 
response agencies to the exercises. Barr can provide a meeting space for the exercises at our office in Ann 
Arbor or meet at Township provided facilities. Within 60 days of completing each exercise, Barr will 
provide an evaluation report of the exercise including comments from participants and recommendations 
for modifications to emergency procedures and the EAP.  

FERC has requested the exercises be scheduled before September 30, 2019. Barr proposes to complete 
the exercises and reports between April and August, 2019 depending on the availability of the FERC 
Engineer, who will likely attend one or both of the exercises.   

We propose to complete the tasks provided herein for an estimated fee of $26,000, using the terms and 
conditions of our most recent executed Agreement with the Township. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

__________________________________       _________________________________ 
Tor Hansen, PE           David Hibbs, PE 
Vice-President           Project Manager 



6-4 EMERGENCY ACTION PLAN EXERCISES 

6-4.1 General

Licensees should exercise the EAP in coordination with state, local and tribal emergency 
management authorities, including, but not limited to, entities listed on the Notification 
Flowchart. 

Exercises promote prevention, preparedness, and response to incidents and emergencies, 
and may also be extended to include recovery operations. Exercising also demonstrates 
the EAP's effectiveness in an actual situation and demonstrates the readiness levels of 
key personnel. Periodic exercises result in an improved EAP as lessons learned are 
incorporated into the updated EAP document. 

6-4.2 Types of Exercises

There are seven types of exercises defined in the Homeland Security Exercise and 
Evaluation Program (HSEEP). The types are divided into discussion-based and 
operations-based exercises. 

Discussion-based Exercises 

Discussion-based exercises familiarize participants with current plans, policies, 
agreements, and procedures, or may be used to develop new plans, policies, agreements, 
and procedures. The following are types of discussion-based exercises: 

• Seminar. A seminar is an informal discussion, designed to orient participants to
new or updated plans, policies, or procedures, e.g., a seminar to review a new
Evacuation Standard Operating Procedure.

• Workshop. A workshop resembles a seminar but is used to build specific products,
such as a draft plan or policy. For example, a Training and Exercise Plan
Workshop is used to develop a Multi-Year Training and Exercise Plan.

42 





















































  - A plan and schedule to make changes to the EAP or other follow-up
actions.

D. Revision to EAPs

An exercise may reveal areas of the EAP that require revisions. This should reveal the
strengths and weaknesses of the EAP, including specified internal actions, external
notification procedures, and adequacy of other information, such as inundation maps.

The Commission offers the "Emergency Action Plan Exercise Design Course" at various
locations throughout the United States at least once a year. This course is tailored for
licensees and other dam owners. The course includes an invited speaker from a
FERC - licensed project to provide the "licensee perspective" related to the design of an
EAP exercise. The Commission endeavors to also invite other appropriate agencies, such
as the National Weather Service, State dam safety officials, and local emergency
management authority personnel to contribute to the course instruction. We recommend
licensees encourage their local emergency management authority personnel to participate
in the course. The FERC Regional Offices should be contacted for availability of this
course.

Another source of "hands-on" training is to attend tabletop, functional, or full-scale
exercises. Licensees can contact Regional Offices for a list of upcoming exercises and
contact information. As licensees develop and conduct their exercises, they are
encouraged to invite other licensees as observers or evaluators. As a licensee observes an
actual exercise, it may identify deficiencies in its own plans and will be able to make
improvements before it holds its own exercise. 

68



   Revenue # __________ 
 

1 

CONTRACT 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
 AGREEMENT is made this 15th day of January, 2019, by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
located at 7200 Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 and the COUNTY OF WASHTENAW, a municipal 
corporation, with offices located in the County Administration Building, 220 North Main Street, Ann Arbor, 
Michigan  48107(“County”).   
 
 In consideration of the promises below, the parties mutually agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The COUNTY will allocate and fully support a dedicated, approximate half-time professional 
project manager to lead the ReImagine Washtenaw regional planning effort, and, in addition, provide 
space for meetings of the Joint Technical Committee (JTC), coordinate monthly JTC meetings, coordinate 
submittal of grant applications, coordinate special projects, conduct research, and other tasks, as 
determined necessary and appropriate by the JTC. 
 

ARTICLE II - COMPENSATION 
 
 During the period the above services are provided, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti will pay the 
COUNTY within 30 days, upon receipt of an invoice in calendar year 2019 and 2020 in the amount of 
three thousand dollars, for a total of six thousand dollars.   
 

ARTICLE III - TERM 
 
 This contract begins on January 1, 2019 and ends on December 31, 2020. 
  

ARTICLE IV - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
 
 The County will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, physical handicap, age, height, weight, marital 
status, veteran status, religion and political belief (except as it relates to a bona fide occupational 
qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the business).   
 
 The County will take affirmative action to eliminate discrimination based on sex, race, or a 
handicap in the hiring of applicant and the treatment of employees.  Affirmative action will include, but not 
be limited to: Employment; upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment advertisement; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; selection for training, including apprenticeship.   
 
 The County agrees to post notices containing this policy against discrimination in conspicuous 
places available to applicants for employment and employees.  All solicitations or advertisements for 
employees, placed by or on the behalf of the County, will state that all qualified applicants will receive 
consideration for employment without regard to race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, national origin, 
physical handicap, age, height, weight, marital status, veteran status, religion and political belief.   
 

ARTICLE V - EQUAL ACCESS 
 
 The County shall provide the services set forth in Article I without discrimination on the basis of 
race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, physical handicap, or age.   
 

ARTICLE VI - ASSIGNS AND SUCCESSORS 
 
 This contract is binding on the Charter Township of Ypsilanti and the County, their successors 
and assigns.  Neither the County nor the Charter Township of Ypsilanti will assign or transfer its interest in 
this contract without the written consent of the other.   
 

ARTICLE VII - TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 
 



   Revenue # __________ 
 

2 

 Section 1 -  Termination without cause.  Either party may terminate the contract by giving one 
hundred eighty (180) days written notice to the other party.   
 

 
 

ARTICLE VIII - CHANGES IN SCOPE OR SCHEDULE OF SERVICES  
 
 Changes mutually agreed upon by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti and the County, will be 
incorporated into this contract by written amendments signed by both parties.   
 

ARTICLE IX - CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM 
 
 This contract is to be interpreted by the laws of Michigan.  The parties agree that the proper 
forum for litigation arising out of this contract is in Washtenaw County, Michigan.   
 

ARTICLE X - EXTENT OF CONTRACT 
 
 This contract represents the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior 
representations, negotiations or agreements whether written or oral.   
 

ARTICLE XI – ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES 
 

                All parties to this contract agree that either electronic or handwritten signatures are acceptable 
to execute this agreement. 
 
 
ATTESTED TO:     WASHTENAW COUNTY 
 
By:________________________________ By:______________________________ 
     Lawrence Kestenbaum (DATE)       Gregory Dill    (DATE) 
     County Clerk/Register        County Administrator 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
By:_______________________________ By:______________________________ 
     Teresa Gillotti  (DATE)       Brenda Stumbo (DATE) 
     OCED Director         Charter Township of Ypsilanti Supervisor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM BY 
 
BY:______________________________ BY:______________________________ 
      Curtis N.   Hedger (DATE) Karen Lovejoy Roe  (DATE)   
      Office of Corporation Counsel Charter Township of Ypsilanti Clerk 
 
REVISED:  6/1/00 
 



2019‐2020 ReImagine Washtenaw Work Plan 

 

2019 Tasks: 

1. Mid‐Block Crossing at County Service Center – Organize and coordinate necessary stakeholders and funding 
sources to plan, design, and facilitate construction of Super Stop and adjacent Mid‐Block Crossing at the County 
Service Center. Coordinate and facilitate expansion of the Park N Ride agreement between AAATA and County to 
support AAATA investment in Super Stop. 
 

2. Facilitate multi‐jurisdictional working group of transportation engineers in development of common mid‐block 
crossing design elements – an effort begun in 2017, that will now re‐convene in 2019.  Common mid‐block 
crossing elements will improve regional safety by providing a recognizable design for motorists and pedestrians 
that will serve to minimize confusion.  

 
3. Promotional 3‐5 min. Video of ReImagine Washtenaw – Work with video producer or other organization to 

develop promotional video of ReImagine Washtenaw, the history of the project, why improvements are called 
for, what the current challenges are, what strategy is being employed to implement the vision. 
 

4. Ypsilanti Township CDBG‐funded Sidewalk Infill project – Assist Ypsilanti Township to secure remaining 
easements, manage CDBG Sub‐Recipient contract, including final engineering, RFP and Construction.  

 

5. AAATA BRT Lite Implementation – Provide support to AAATA, as requested, in next steps for BRT Lite 
implementation, including Transit Signal Priority, Super Stops, Queue Jump Lanes, and Express (limited stop) 
service implementation.  Coordinate and align BRT Lite implementation with ReImagine Washtenaw’s 2014 
Corridor Improvement Study. 

 
6. Support Ypsilanti Township Master Plan and Zoning Ordinance implementation – which is an opportunity to 

implement walkable, mixed‐use, development at nodes within the Township along the corridor. 
 

7. Provide support and assistance to City of Ann Arbor planning ‐ to develop new Transit Oriented Development 
zoning district that could be applied to various corridors including Washtenaw Ave., which would serve to 
safeguard the adopted goals and speed implementation of ReImagine Washtenaw. 

 
On‐Going Tasks: 

8. Explore, support and/or Conduct feasibility studies – for specific corridor improvements that advance ReImagine 
goals, or specifically called for in the 2014 Corridor Improvement Study.  These might include Super Stops, Mid‐
Block Crossings, Queue Jump Lanes, Traffic Signals, and sidewalk infill, among others. 

 
9. Resource for local units to – A: identify future easement needs, B: coordinate with property owners and 

developers to acquire easements for sidewalks or adequate public access, C: assist with easement 
drafting/recording. 

 
10. Attend quarterly MDOT Jackson Office regional biking/walking working group, which is a group to exchange 

project ideas, best practices, and upcoming training/conferences. 
 

11. Project Management – Continue to prepare agendas, meeting materials, meeting location for monthly Joint 
Technical Committee meetings. 
 

12. Sidewalk Infill – Support Local Unit efforts to complete sidewalk infill, whether through grant applications, data 
support, CDBG Urban County funding, etc.  Coordinate and seek available MDOT Safety funding for sidewalk, 



and support funds currently allocated for 2019‐2020 to City of Ypsilanti for critical infill location next to Dom 
Bakeries.  Prioritized list of top 6 sidewalk infill locations provided to MDOT in 2018 – follow up for additional 
possible projects to fund. 
 

13. Find Opportunities to Utilize Act 381 Brownfield Tax Increment Financing Incentives – to support corridor 
redevelopment consistent with long‐term vision for corridor. 

 
14. Utilize Social Media and Website to Promote Project – Update social media and website with latest news, 

information, improvements and accomplishment.  Project Manager is available to media and public for 
information and resources to advance and publicize the project. 

 

 

*This proposed Work Plan reflects an anticipated reduction in staff time dedicated to project management, which will 

result in reduced stakeholder financial support request from $5,000 to $3,000 for each of the four local units, and 

$15,000 to $9,000 for TheRide. 

 





























1 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

PARK COMMISSION 

APPROVED MINUTES OF THE September 10th, 2018 REGULAR MEETING 

 

Park Commission Agendas and Minutes are available on the township website at 
https://ytown.org/park-commission 
 
The Park Commission held an Open House from 6:30 – 7:30pm for the purpose of collecting input 
from residents about the township parks. This open house is part of the process of developing the 
Master Plan 2018-2019. The open house was held in the first floor of the civic center. It was led by 
consultant Chris Nordstrom, Landscape Architect with CWAPLAN and hosted by the park 
commission. 
 
Park Commissioners Present: Stuart Collis, Edward Burnett, Elizabeth Corder, Gloria Peterson, 
Jennifer Sporer, David Streeter, and Debbie Swanson 
 
Township Trustees Present: Supervisor Brenda Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy-Roe, Trustee Monica 
Ross-Williams 
 
Township Staff: Angela Verges and Wayne Dudley 
 
Additional Elected Officials: Washtenaw County Commissioner District 6 Ricky Jefferson 
 
Residents visited stations with pictures of township parks and shared ideas, comments, and 
concerns. 

 

I. Call to Order 

Commission Chair Collis called the meeting to order at 7:35 p.m. in the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti Civic Center’s Board Meeting Room. 
 

II. Roll Call 

Commissioners Present: Edward Burnett, Stuart Collis, Elizabeth Corder, Gloria Peterson, Jennifer 
Sporer, David Streeter, and Debbie Swanson 
 
Commissioners Absent: None 
Staff Present: Angela Verges and Wayne Dudley 
Township Trustees Present: Monica Ross-Williams 

 
III. Determination of Quorum  

Quorum present 
 

IV. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the agenda made by Peterson  
Seconded by Corder      Motion Carried Unanimously  
 

V. Approval of Minutes – August 6th 2018 
Motion to approve August 6th 2018 minutes with corrections made by Peterson 
Seconded by Streeter      Motion Carried Unanimously  
*Two corrections are reflected in the August 6th Minutes: Peterson was not present at the August 6th 
Meeting and the park commission was told the suggestions they made for the parks survey were 

https://ytown.org/park-commission


2 
 

adopted but these suggestions (combining part 3 and the wording on #4) were not reflected in the 
final copy of the survey that was released to the public 
 

VI. Citizens Participation 

A. Jazz Festival Proposal by Mark Wright 

Ypsilanti Township resident Mark Wright shared “Jazz in the Park” a proposal for holding a special 
event in one of the township parks in the summer of 2019. Mark Wright and Kevin Porter of Smooth 
Jazz Live Incorporated a non-profit organization with 501 (C) status shared the proposal with the 
park commission and answered commissioners questions. The discussion and questions focused on 
logistics, budget projections, location, and understanding the information presented in the proposal. 
It was agreed that the proposal would be presented again after some of the questions from the park 
commission were addressed and more details were included in the proposal. Commissioner Burnett 
agreed to work with the organization on the proposal. Hosting a Jazz event in one of our parks has 
been a goal of park commissioner Burnett since his term began.  

 
VII. Reports 

 A. Commissioner Reports 

Swanson expressed concern about the tree trimming and clearing that was done in North Bay Park at 
the northwest corner of the park near the gate station entrance to the park. The park commission was 
not alerted to this work or for the reasons why it took place either prior to or after the work was 
completed. The tree line that was removed created a natural boundary in that part of the park and a 
visual buffer and possibly a sound buffer from traffic entering I-94 and traffic on the Whittaker 
Rd/Huron Street corridor. Swanson believes this type of landscaping change should be discussed 
with the park commission prior to being implemented. 
 
Burnett had expressed concerns about the net for tennis courts at Community Center Park. Follow up 
is needed for this item. 
 
B. Staff Reports – None 
 

VIII. Unfinished Business 

A. Master Plan 2014-2018 

1.  Review of Open House – Collis asked commissioners to submit information and notes that 
were collected from residents to Chris Nordstrom, Landscape Architect with CWAPLAN. The 
public survey will remain open for public input for the next two weeks. 

 
IX. New Business 

A. Bike Rack Donation by the Friends of the Border to Border Trail 

Jeff Krzewinski representing the Friends of the Border to Border Trail shared information about a 
grant the organization received from REI to fund the purchase and installation of Bike Pump and 
Repair Stands along the Border to Border Trail. The organization wants to donate a stand in 
Ypsilanti Township. He suggested Loon Feather Park as a possible location. He requested placement 
along the trail where it would be visible and usable from the park and by neighbors near the park. 
The donation requires an in-kind donation from the township of a cement pad and the installation of 
the stand. 
 
Motion to accept the donation from the Friends of the Border to Border Trail of a Bike Pump and 
Repair Stand to be installed on a cement pad along the border to border trail near Loon Feather Park 
in a location where it would be visible and usable by the neighbors near the park made by Swanson 



3 
 

Seconded by Collis     Motion Carried Unanimously   
   

X. Announcements - None 

 

XI. Recommendations to the Township Board 
Motion to accept the donation from the Friends of the Border to Border Trail of a Bike Pump and 
Repair Stand to be installed on a cement pad along the border to border trail near Loon Feather Park 
in a location where it would be visible and usable by the neighbors near the park made by Swanson 
Seconded by Collis     Motion Carried Unanimously 
 

XII. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn made by Burnett    
Seconded by Streeter      Motion Carried Unanimously 
Meeting Adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 

 
Minutes Taken and Prepared by Debbie Swanson, Secretary 
Minutes Approved by Park Commission on October 1, 2018 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety  Planning & Zoning  Ordinance Enforcement  Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393 

 

 
To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Michael Radzik, OCS Director 
 

Re: Request to authorize circuit court litigation to a abate public nuisance at 8734 
Lilly Drive in the amount of $10,000 funded in account 101-950.000-801.023 

 

Copy: McLain & Winters, Township Attorneys 
 

Date:  January 29, 2019 
 
The Office of Community Standards has investigated a public nuisance at the following location 
and authorization is requested to engage legal services to abate said nuisance. 
 
8734 Lilly Drive 
This single family house was inspected using an administrative warrant on January 29, 2019 
after it was reported by a neighbor to be vacant with water running out under a doorway.  
Public safety officers forced entry into the building and discovered water pipes had frozen and 
burst with water actively flowing throughout the two story structure in sub-zero temperatures.  
OCS staff inspected the house with a warrant and documented extensive damage throughout 
the structure.  OCS staff determined the owner had suffered a medical problem and had been 
living elsewhere for an extended period of time, during which power utilities were terminated.  
Paperwork found at the residence indicated the property was in late stages of mortgage 
foreclosure and was probably going to a sheriff’s sale in the near future.  Administrative 
approval was granted to initiate litigation to abate the nuisance.  



                                                                            
2019 ANNUAL LIST OF CONTRACTS AND RENEWALS 

 
 
VENDOR/FIRM  DESCRIPTION 
 
360 Service Printing & mailing assessment notices & Pers. Prop. 
Abby Door Garage Doors 
Adobe Creative Cloud Subscription/Stock Art  
A.F. Smith  Electrical Work 
Air Source One  Breathing Air Compressor Maintenance 
Al Walter’s Heating and Cooling  Furnace and AC Repair 
Alienvault  Network IDS Systems 
Alternative Computer Technology, Inc.  Sophos Computer Security Software 
Ann Arbor Audio  Board Room Sound System 
Ann Arbor SPARK Dues 
Ann Arbor SPARK East Dues 
APEX  Assessing Drawing Software 
Apollo Fire Equipment 
Applied Imaging  Printer Repair and Maintenance 
ASAP  DOT Random Screens  
ASC 
ASCAP Phone Music 
Ascend Health Care Agent 
Associated Fence Fence Repari/Install 
Atchinson Ford Vehicle Repair 
AT&T Voice/Data Communication Services 
Atlantic Welding Supply Welding Supplies/Tank Rentals and Refills 
Automatic Irrigation Supply Green Oaks Irrigation System – Rain Bird  
Badger  Chipper Parts 
Bandit  Chipper Parts 
Barr Engineering  Hydro Station 
B & C Painting  Paint and Graffiti Removal 
Bell Tire  MI Deals Goodyear Dealer 
Biddle Consulting Group  OPAC HR Testing Software 
Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Michigan Employee Health Care 
BS&A  Government Software Apps 
Budget Towing Vehicle Towing 
Butzel Long Labor Attorney  
Carlisle Wortman Assoc., Inc. 
Carter & Burgess Structural Engineer 
Carter Lumber     Building Supplies 
CDWG      Microsoft Enterprise Agreement 
Centron Data Services Printing & mailing assessment notices & Personal Property 
Chelsea Lumber     Building Supplies 
Cincinnati Time Time Clocks 
Cintas  First Aid Supplies 
Clarity Benefit Solutions Employee HRA, HSA and Dependent Care Reimbursement 
Clear Rate Communications Telephone Service 
Code42 Online Backup Services 
Cognito LLC Online Forms 
Comcast  Internet Services 
Comodo  Website Security Scanning 
Conference of Western Wayne Firefighter Testing Program Firefighter Testing Program 
Conti Cameras/Video 
Controlled Power U.P.S. (Uninterruptible Power Supply) Maintenance, Fire Dept. 
Constellation Energy Gas Service 
Cummins Sales and Service Generator Maintenance 
Crawford Doors Garage and Entry Door Repair/Replacement 
Crystal Flash Fuel Delivery 
D & B Power Associates, Inc. UPS Maintenance 
Dearborn National Employee Disability and Life  
Delta Dental  Employee Dental Services 
DTE Energy  Generator Maintenance  
D J Conneley   Boiler Maintenance 
DNS Filter  DNS Filtering Service 
Doan Construction   Sidewalk Repair Contractor and Engineer 
Duo  Two Factor Authentication 
Dynamic Media  XM Radio 
Ed’s Garage Vehicle Repair 



2018 Annual Contracts and Renewals 
Page 2  
 
VENDOR/FIRM  DESCRIPTION 
Election Systems & Software (ES&S) Tabulator and AutoMark Maintenance Contract 
EMPCO, Inc. Fire Dept. Promotional Testing 
ESRI GIS Software Maintenance 
Fiber Link Inc. Miss Dig Management 
Fire Findings 
Fire Safety 2000 
Fotolia.com Stock Images 
FSCI  
Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company Actuary Company 
Garan Lucow 
GCSI Lobbyist Firm 
GolfNow Golf Course Management Software 
Google Google Apps 
Governmental Business Systems Election Equipment & Supplies 
Governor Computer Printer Repairs 
Grainger Industrial Equipment 
Graphic Sciences Document Scanning 
Guardian Alarm  Security Alarm & Door Access System 
Hastings Air Energy Control Plymovent System Preventive Maintenance, Fire Dept. 
Home Depot Building Supplies 
Honeywell   HVAC – RSD 
Hootsuite Social Media Manager Services 
Huron River Watershed Council Dues 
IBM  Maas360 Mobile Device Management 
Int. Assoc. of Arson Invest 
Imperva  Webserver Application Firewall  
International Code Council  State Building Code Books/Software 
Intern. Fire Chief’s Assoc. 
JAMAR Technologies  Traffic Survey Equipment   
J and S  Painting Services 
JTW Pipes, LLC  Plumber 
Lastpass Password Management 
Linode Township Web Host 
Lighting Supply Bulbs, Ballasts, Lighting Supplies 
Logisoft Sophos Software/Firewall Software 
Long’s Automotive Vehicle Repair 
Looking Good Lawns Ordinance Mowing 
Lowes Building Supplies 
Mailchimp Email Listserv Manager 
MAP (Michigan Ability Partners) Roadside Cleanup 
Maps by Wagner  Police/Fire/Elections/Residential Services Maps 
Marc Dutton Irrigation, Inc  Comm. Center Ball Field Irrigation Repairs 
Marketplace Solutions of Ohio, Inc. 
Margolis Nursery  Trees and Landscaping 
MASA  Softball purchase for adult programs at Rec. Dept. 
McLain & Winters  Township Attorneys 
Meals on Wheels  
Medtronic/Physio-Control 
Merit.edu  Zimbra Maintenance  
MERS  Employee Retirement System 
Metro Airport Truck  Chipper Truck Repair and Bus Repair 
Michigan Assessor Association  Dues for Assessor Office 
MI Association of Fire Chiefs 
MiGMIS Michigan Governmental IT Professionals 
Michigan Association of Planning (MAP) C.E.D.  training, reference etc. 
Michigan CAT Fire Truck Repairs, Compost Equipment Supplier/Repairs  
Michigan Fire Inspector’s Society  
Michigan Fireman’s Association  
Michigan Municipal League  Insurance 
(MRPA)Michigan Recreation & Park Assoc.  Per Art S. 
Michigan Township Association Dues Clerk’s Office 
Microsoft Microsoft Licensing 
Miracle Midwest Playscape Equipment for Specific Parks 
Monitis.com External Network Monitoring 
Munetrix Web support – Dashboard & Citizen’s Guide 



2018 Annual Contracts and Renewals 
Page 3  
 
VENDOR/FIRM  DESCRIPTION 
National Fire Protection Association 
Netwrix Corporation    Event Log Management 
Niswander LLC  
O’Bryan’s Lock & Key Locksmith 
OHM Engineering 
On the Ground News    Media Coverage 
Oscar W. Larson     Fuel Tank Repair 
Parkway Services Port-A-John Rental 
Parson’s Brinkerhoff 
Premier Safety  Fire equipment, supplies and maintenance   
Priority Systems  Printer repair and maintenance 
PDQ.com  PDQSoftware
Pencura  Playscape Equipment  
Pitney Bowes  Postage Machine 
Play Enviro     Playscape Equipment for Specific Parks 
Playworld Midstates    Playscape Equipment for Specific Parks 
PM Technologies     Generator Testing and Maintenance 
PNC      Employer Portion of Fire Dept. Pension    
PSLZ Auditors/David Williamson CPA 
Printing Systems  Election Supplies 
Professional Tree Service  Tree Removal 
QPS Printing 
Q-Star Technology  Flash Cam Maintenance  
Rainbird   Irrigation Services for Golf Course   
Reimagine Washtenaw 
Ricoh  Printer Services 
Screenconnect Software, LLC   Remote Screenshare    
SEMCOG   
SE Michigan Fire Chief’s Assoc  
Senior Nutrition Lease  Agreement with Washtenaw County for Senior Nutrition Program 
Shrader Tire & Oil  Tires and MIDeal Items 
Sinclair Recreation, LLC-Gametime  Playscape Equipment for Specific Parks 
SipStation  Faxing Services 
SiteOne Landscape Supply, LLC  Ball and Soccer Paint Supplies, Ice Melt 
Spartan Distributors  Only Michigan Toro Vendor  
Spears Fire & Safety  Fire Extinguisher Inspections/Maintenance 
Spicer Group  Engineers/Surveyors/Planners 
Spok Pagers 
Standard Insurance Life/Disability Insurance 
Stantec  Hydro Dam Maintenance 
StarWinds  vSAN Software 
State of Michigan  MiDeal 
Stormwater Management Services, LLC   
Superior Diesel Chipper Engine Parts  
Survey Monkey Online Services 
Synergy Fiber Structured Network Wiring  
Tetra Tech Environmental Services 
Thomson Reuters Fixed Assets Software 
Total Fitness 
Tri County International  Senior Bus Repairs 
Trello  Project Management 
Trendset LLC  Structured Cabling 
UIS  Electrical Testing and SCADA Monitoring  
Ulliance Employee Assistance Program (EPA) 
Unifirst Corp. Employee uniforms 
Valentine Tree Service Tree Service 
Vanguard Employer Portion of Fire Dept. OPEB 
Verizon Mobile Phones 
Vermont Systems RecTrac Software Support 
V & J Cement Contractors Concrete and Manhole Renovation 
VMWare Server Virtualization Software 
Vision Service Plans (VSP) Vision Insurance 
Vultr Website Hosting Services 
Washtenaw Area Transportation Study Dues  
Washtenaw County CED -  Senior Nutrition Program 
Washtenaw County Mutual Aid  



2018 Annual Contracts and Renewals 
Page 4  
 
VENDOR/FIRM  DESCRIPTION 
Washtenaw County Road Commission Purchase of Salt & Grading 
Washtenaw County Treasurer Sheriff Services 
Washtenaw Urgent Care Pre-employment Drug Screen/DOT Screens 
Waste Management Trash Haulers 
Western Wayne County Mutual Aid 
West Shore  Maintenance of Outdoor Sirens 
Weingartz  STIHL Dealer (weed trimmers, chain saws, push mower) 
Windstream Telephone Service 
W.J. O’Neil Mechanical 
Wolff Networks, LLC Structured Cable Installation Services 
Wolverine Freightliner Chipper Trucks, Fire Engine Parts and Repair 
XMission Mail Services for Park Commission 
YCUA  Lift Stations, Vehicle and Equipment Repair 
Ypsilanti Area Chamber of Commerce 
Ypsilanti City DPW  Road Salt 
Ypsilanti National Little League  Local youth Baseball/Softball Organization 
Zoho Corp  Network Monitoring/Request Racking Systems 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2019 BUDGET AMENDMENT #2

February 5, 2019 
AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $28,637.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $28,637.00

Net Revenues $28,637.00

Expenditures: CIVIC CENTER ROOF 101-970-000-975.141 $28,637.00

Net Expenditures $28,637.00

249 -  BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND Total Increase $15,682.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 249-000-000-699.000 $15,682.00

Net Revenues $15,682.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - PTO & Sick 249-249-000-708.004 $14,567.00
FICA 249-249-000-715.000 $1,115.00

Net Expenditures $15,682.00

Request to increase Civic Center roof project by $ 28,637 for a change order to met building specs  This will be 
funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for payout of accumulated PTO time of former AFSCME building inspector, who is now 
the Chief Building Official. This will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2019 Budget (#2) 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $28,637 to $9,509,856 and approve the 
department line item changes as outlined. 

Move to increase the Building Department Fund budget by $15,682 to $885,878 and 
approve the department line item changes as outlined. 



 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 


	February 5, 2019 
	Work Session Agenda
	Asset Mgmt. Plan for County Drains
	Wash. Regional Resource Mgmt. Authority
	Review Agenda
	Other Discussion

	Regular Meeting Agenda
	Public Comments
	Consent Agenda
	January 15, 2019 Work Session Minutes
	January 30, 2019 Special Meeting Minutes
	Statements and Checks for February 5, 2019

	Attorney Report
	Old Business
	Request to Rescind Local Government Approval of a Small Winemaker License and On Premise Tasting Permit

	New Business
	Request to Approve Change Order for Molanr Roofing for Civic Center Roof
	1st Reading of Proposed Ord. 2019-484, Prohibiting Recreational Marijuana Establishments
	Request to Approve Agreement with Wash. Cty for Subaward of Federal Financial Assistance
	Request Approval for Settlement Agreement
	Request to Approve Barr Engineering for Hydro 
	Request to Approve Agreement with Washtenaw County for ReImagine Washtenaw
	Request to Approve Agreement with Issue Media Group
	Request to Approve Retainer Agreement with GCSI
	Request to Accept Donation of a Bike Stand
	Request to Abate a Public Nuisance
	2019 Contracts and Renewals
	Budget Amendment #2

	Other Business



